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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT ﬁF COLUMBIA

Misc. No. 08-442 (TFH)

IN RE:
GUANTANAMO BAY Civil Action No.
DETAINEE LITIGATION 06-cv-1767 (RMU)
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Respondents hereby submit, as explained herein, a factual return pertaining to the
petitioner identified as the subject of the attached Narrative. This return sets forth factual bases'

supporting petitioner’s lawful, ongoing detention pursuant to the Authorization for the Use of

Military Force and the President’s power as Commander in Chief.
Dated: November 24, 2008 Respectfully submitted,

GREGORY G. KATSAS
Assistant Attorney General

JOHN C. O’QUINN
Deputy Assistant Attorney General

& < E—

JOSEPH H, HUNTD.C. Bar No. 431134)
VINCENT M. GARVEY (D.C. Bar No. 127191)
TERRY M. HENRY

PAUL AHERN

ANDREW SPARKS

Attorneys

United States Department of Justice

Civil Division, Federal Programs Branch
20 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.,
Washington, DC 20530

Tel: 202.305.8002

Fax: 202.305.2658

Attorneys for Respondents

' Respondents reserve the tight to seek leave to further supplement the record with
additional factual bases supporting petitioner’s detention, as necessary.
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Declaration of Rear Admiral David M. Thomas, Jr.

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, 1, David M. Thomas, Jr., hereby deglare
under penalty of pejury under the laws of the United States of America that to the besi of
my knowledge, information, and belief, the foliowing is true, accurate, and correct:

Tam a Rear Admiral in the United States Navy, with 31 years of active duty
service, | currently serve as Cominander, Joint Task Force-Guantanamo (JTF—GTMO); at
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba. 1'have held this position since 27 May 2008, As such, ] am
directly responsible for the successful execution of the JTF-GTMO mission lo conduct
detention and interrogafion operations in support of the Global War on Terrorism,
coordinate and implement detainee screening operations, and support law enforcement
and war cfimes investigations.

The attached narrative and supporting materials from files of the Department of
Defense or other government agencies contain information used by the Department of
Defense 10 establish the status of the individual who is the subject of the narrative as au
enemy combatant and 1o substantiate their detention as an enerny combatant at
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba.

Dated:
2

e
A S

DAVIDM. THOMAS, IR,
Rear Admiral, LS. Navy
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

MASHOUR ABDULLAH MUQBEL AL-SABRI, ;
Petitioner, %
V. g Civil Action No. 06-CV-1767 (RMU)

GEORGE WALKER BUSH et di., ;

Respondents. % _

)

NARRATIVE FOR PETITIONER MASHOUR ABDULLAH MUOBEL AL-SABRI
(ISN 324)
Introduction

1. Mashour Abdullah Abdullah al-Sabri is a member of al-Qaida. He was an al-
Qaida guesthouse facilitator and has ties to Usama Ein Laden. Sabri lived with the al-Qaida cell
that planned the attack on the USS COLE and went to Afghanistan to fight for the Taliban.

2. Consequently, Sabri is lawfully subject to detention pursnant to, inter alia, the
President’s power as Commander in Chief and the Authorization for the Use of Military Force.
115 Stat. 224 (2001).

3, In the materials discussed herein relating to the factual basis for Sabri’s detention
and the assessment that he is a properly detained enemy combatant, there are documents
reflecting interviews with him and others conducted by law enforcement and int‘elligence
I-Jersonnel, as well as information derived from other sources and methods. Informalion received
from these sources is commonly reproduced in reports created by the collecting officer, Such
information is also commonly analyzed by intelligence or law enforcement personnel and used to

produce other intelligence products, These reports and intelligence products are routinely relied
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upon by military or intelligence personnel in making decisions to act upon threats to our national

security, Declaration of on Intelligence 101; Declaration of Robert

H. Holmes.

4. The following narrative and attached materials set forth the factual bases
supporting Sabri’s detention, This narrative is not intended to be a complete explication of the
information in support of Sabri’s detention in those materials.

3. As with all detained enemy combatants at Guantanamo Bay, Sabri has been
assigned an Internment Serial Numnber, or ISN. The ISN is an administrative code assigned to
military detainces. Sabri’s full ISN is 0003248 in which the number «324” is Sabri’s
unique identifier and the designation indicates that he is a national of Source |
documents attached as exhibits to this Declaration may refer to Sabri by name, full ISN, or
various short forms, such as “0()0324” or “ISN 324.”

6. It is common for those engaged in terrorist activities to use an alias, commonly

known in Arabic as a kunya. Declaration of on Names, Aliases,

Kunyas and Variants. Sabri’s kunyas include Salman al-Makki, Abu Abdullah, and Mashour.

_ISNCITF (Tune 8, 2004); ISN 324 FD 302 (Feb. 21, 2002).

General Background

7. Al-Qaida (“the Base™) was founded by Usama bin Laden and others in or about
1989 for the purpose of opposing certain governments and officials with force and violence.

Nat’l Comm’n On Terrorist Attacks Upon The United States, The 9/11 Commission Report 56

(2004) (9/11 Commission Report). Usama bin Laden is recognized as the Emir (prince or leader)

of al-Qaida. 1d. A purpose or goal of al-Qaida, as stated by Usama bin Laden and other al-Qaida

leaders, is to support violent attacks against property and nationals (both military and civilian) of

2
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the United States and other countries. Id, at 59-61,

8. Between 1989 and 2001, al-Qaida established training camps, guesthouses, and
business operations in Afghanistan, Pakistan, and other countries for the purpose of training and
supporting violent attacks against property and nationals (both military and civilian) of the
United States and other countries. Id. at 64-67.

9. In1996, Usama bin Laden issued a public “Declaration of Jihad Against the
Americans.” This declaration called for the murder of U.S. military personnel serving on the

_ Arabian peninsula. Id. at 48.

10. InF ebruary 1998, Usama bin Laden and Ayman al Zawahiri (bin Laden’s deputy)
issued a farwa (purported religious ruling) requiring all Muslims able to do so to kill Americans -
whether civilian or military - anywhere in the world. Id. at 47. |

) 1. Since 1989, members and associates of al-Qaida, known and unknown, have
carried out numerous terrorist attacks, including, but not limited to: the attacks against the
American Embassies in Kenya and Tanzania in August 1998, which killed approximately 250
people, id. at 68-70; the attack against the USS COLE in October 2000, which killed 17 United
States Navy sailors, id. at 190-93; and the attacks on the United States on September 11, 2001,
which killed approximately 3,000 people. 1d. passim.

12. The Taliban (students of Islamic knowledge) is an Islamic fundamentalist group

that was formed in Afghanistan in 1994. The Taliban in Afghanistan, available at

www.cfc.org/publication/10551. After two years of violent conflict that included the capture of

Kabul, Afghanistan’s capital, the Taliban took control of Afghanistan’s national government in

1996. 9/11 Commission Report at 65. Although it was never formally recognized by the United

States, id. at 124, the Taliban controlled Afghanistan’s national government from 1996 until the
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United States-led military campaign ousted the Taliban from power in 2001. Id. at 337-38,
During the period in which the Taliban controlled Afghanistan’s national government, it
provided safe harbor and support to al-Qaida and Usama bin Laden. Id. at 64-67.

13, On September 18, 2001, following the attacks on the United States on September
11, 2001, Congress adopted the Authorization for the Use of Military Force. 115 Stat. 224
(2001). Recognizing that the attacks of September 11, 2001 “render it both necessary and
appropriate that the United States exercise its rights to self-defense and to protect United States
citizens at home and abroad,” Congress authorized the President “to use all necessary and
appropriate force against those nations, organizations, or persons he determines planned,
authorized, committed, or aided the terrorist attacks that occurred on September 11, 2001, or
harbored such organizations or persons, in ordet to prevent any future acts of international
terrorism against the United States by such nations, organizations or persons.” Within weeks,

United States military forces were deployed in Afghanistan. 9/11 Commission Report at 337.

14.  The United States led the initial aerial bombing campaign of Afghanistan, with
ground forces composed of United States forces and Afghanistan militia opposed to the Taliban,
including the Northern Alliance. The Northern Alliance is an association of Afghan groups
opposed to the Taliban. The Northel;n Alliance has assisted the United States in its military
campaign in Afghanistan to defeat al-Qaida and the Taliban. Id. at 330-34; 336-38.

15.  In December 2001, the United States-led military campaign removed the Taliban
from control of Afghanistan’s national government, Id. at 337-38. Taliban and al-Qaida forces,
however, have continued to operate in Afghanistan and attack coalition forces. Currently, two
major military operations are underway in Afghanistan. First, Operation Enduring Freedom

(OEF) is a multinational coalition military operation, led by the United States, initiated in
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October 2001 to counter terrorism and bring security to Afghanistan in collaboration with

Afghan forces. See www.state.gov/r/pa/prs/ps/2006/60083.htm, QEF operations led to the

collapse of the Taliba-n government and helped bring security and stability to Afghanistan. Id. |
OEF involves troops from over 20 nations, includin;g about 19,000 United States forces and
about 3,000 non-United States troops. Id. Second, the International Security Assistance Force
(ISAF) is a United Nations-mandated international coalifion operating under the command of the

North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATQ). See www.nato.int/isaf/index.html, ISAF was

established in 2002 with the goal of creating conditions for stabilization and reconstruction in
Afghanistan. ISAF is comprised of approximately 50,000 troops from 40 countries. 1d,

Sabri was deported from Saudi Arabia for criminal activity

.16. Sabri was born in Mecca, Saudi Arabia, in 1978." Both of Sabri’s parents were
born in Yemen, and Sabri claims Yemini citizenship. Sabri lived in Mabdah, Saundi Arabia, until
1990, when he moved to Mecca. Sabri dropped out of school in the ninth grade. After quitting
school, Sabri worked as a taxi driver. ISN 324 FD302 (Feb. 21, 2002).

17. In1997, Sabri met -t the Holy Mosque in Mecca. [JJilvs 2

criminal who forged passports. -spent one hour in Sabri’s house, where he had a meeting

with two other men,® Six months afier meeting -Sabri was arrested for harboring a

fugitive. Sabri claimed he did not know-was a criminal. 1SN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002).
18. Sabri was incarcerated for 1 % months. The government of Saudi Arabia then

deported Sabri to Yemen, his country of citizenship., Sabri relocated to Taiz, Yemen, where he

met_at the local mosque. 1SN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002). [Jvas 2

' Sabri gives anly his Islamic calendar date of birth: the 15" day of the 4" month of 1370. This translates to March
24, 1978, See www.islamontine.net/calculator.

?In a separate interview, Sabri said [Jtaved a few days at his house. 1SN 324 FD302 (Feb. 21, 2002).

5
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member of the Taliban and had fought in Afghanistan. ISN 324 FD302 (Feb. 21, 2002). .old
~Sabri that he should start a honey-trading business. Sabri agreed and sold honey for ﬁve-or six

months. He then went to San’a, Yemen, to try to get a Saudi visa to return home. The Saudi

government refused to give Sabri a visa until he produced papers proving he was a Saudi citizen.

ISN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002).

19.  Unable to return to Saudi Arabia, Sabri went to live with his uncle,

—_taught his nephew how to use an AK-47 and a pistol.

324 FD302 (May 24, 2002).

20.  Sabri rented a house in San’a wherce he lived with several other men. Among

_SN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002); ISN 324 FD302 (July 2, 2003).

In Yemen Sabri trained in the use of weaionsl was involved in criminal activity, and
o1, s D
R g
vy (1), b(6)
g a—

in the Khalden camp in Afghanistan. ISN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002). While not an al-Qaida-

run camp, the facility had an agreement with bin Laden to conduct reciprocal recruiting efforts.
Graduates of the Khalden camp were offered membership in al-Qaida. Declaration of
on training camps. |

23. - Several of the men living in the-house were involved in an automobile theft ring.

The Yemeni police raided the house in May 1999 and arrested the men. ISN 324 FD302 (July
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18, 2002). Sabri provided two different motives for the auto theft ring, which he claimed to be

unaware of until after he was arrested. Under one motive, the cars would be sold and the pfoﬁts

used to buy weapons, which would then be used to free an individual named _
from prison. -had been convicted of murdering four German tourists. -

abducted the tourists to use as a bargaining chip to gain the release of an imprisoned sheik. Sabri

also offered a second motive fof the auto theft ring, where the stolen cars were to be used to
kidnap tourists. These tourists would then be used to gain release of-nd the sheik.
ISN 324 FD302 (Feb. 21, 2002).

24.  Sabri was released in Januéry 2000 after spending nine months in jail. Sabri has
denied knowing that his roommates were stealing cars or planning a terrorist attack against the
United States. ISN 324 FD302 (Feb. 21, 2002).

Sabriiraveled to Afghanistan, staying at two al-Qaida guesthouses

25,  In January 2000,_suggested Sabri should go to

Afghanistan to find work. Sabri also said he was encouraged to travel to Afghanistan by the

fatwahs issued by Islamic clerics to go fight for the Taliban. ISN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002). In

separate interviews, Sabri stated he went to Afghanistan to find a wife’ and simply to visit. 1SN

324 FD302 (Feb. 21,2002); ISN 324 FD302 (June 2, 2003). ISN

said Sabri traveled to Afghanistan to avoid being arrested again by Yemeni authorities.* 1SN

EHCITF (Feb. 15, 2005).

26. In August 2000, Sabri and three others left Yemen for Quetta, Pakistan., In

* Sabri speaks only Arabic. ISN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002). The main Janguages of Afghanistan are Dari and
TPashtu. See www.state. gov/r/pa/bgn/5380htin. Sabri did not explain why he weould go to a country where he does
not speak the language to look for a wife.

* As discussed infig, Sabri is a member of al-Qaida. While confirmed Sabri was at the Hajji Habbash
guesthouse, he denied Sabri was an al-Qaida member, 1SN CITF (Feb, 15,2005},
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Quetta, Sabri stayed at the Daftare Taliban, a Taliban office that helps Arabs cross into

Afghanistan. Sabri traveled from Quetta to Kandahar, where he stayed at the

&
=
5
o
w
j22]
=
oo
=
]
v
e
<]
c
[77]
o
—
1)
Z
[ e
¥}
L
y
jw,
(e
<
3
e
&
[
EoN
[y
S
S
12
Nt

- a

1-Farouq

was al-Qaida’s primary Afghanistan training facility. Declaration of on Training

Camps. D1

1

||

D1 .
_Decla:ratlon of! on Guesthouses.

27. From Kandahar, Sabri continued on to Jalalabad, Afghanistan. Hc was advised to

wait until someone else from Haiji Habash guesthouse went. According to Sabri,-a
Morracan, accompanied him to Jalalabad. ISN 324 FD 302 (May 24, 2002). SUBEON <1
sabr
.

as a friend of -

28. In Jalalabad, Sabri met _
-SN 324 FD302 (July 18, 2002). Sabri and -ecame close friends, and

rranged for Sabri to marry his sister-in-law.” TSN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002).

29.  Sabri lived with-for one year. The only details Sabri provided about his
activities during this year were that he went hunting witl-and accompanied him to various

mosques giving out money. 1SN 324 FD302 (July 17, 2002).

5 Sabri claims he was arrested before the marriage could oceur.
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30.  Sabri also met an arms dealer named -n Jalalabad. Sabri bought

a sawed-off pistol from or protection approximately three months before September 11,
2001. ISN 324 I'D302 (May 24, 2002).
31.  While in Jalalabad, Sabti learned his former roommate died attacking the USS

COLE. Sabri tells two different stories about how he learned this. In one version,-eamed

of the attack at the market and told Sabri upon returning home. In another Version,-
came to Jalalabad to buy weapons. -came to see Sabri and informed him that-

1ad been a suicide bomber. ISN 324 FD302 (July 17, 2002).

Sabri goes to fight for the Taliban

32.  InMay 2001, Sabri went to the Taliban’s second line of defense near Bagram.

ISN 324 FD302 (Tuly 17, 2002). Sabri
Sabri
e | Sabri said

he became bored because there was no fighting and returned to Jalalabad. ISN 324 FD302 (July

17,2002).

33. After Kabul fell to the United States, Sabri tried to escape to Peshwar, Pakistan,

with two other Arabs and an Afghani guide, 1SN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002). SONECY

b1, bSOl ( 1), ©(6)
b be) 02 ] The Afghani guide told the

men they would likely be arrested at the border, so Sabri turned himself in. ISN 324 FI>302

(May 24, 2002).

E—
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Sabri is a member of al-Qaida

34,  Although Sabri denies being a member of al-Qaida,® this is contradicted by
several other individuals. ISN identified Sasbri as a member of al-
Qaida.’ stated that around May 2001, Sabri worked at the Hajji Habbash and Nibras
gueshouses. New fighters fraveled to the Hajji Habbash guesthouse, while Nibras was reserved
for experienced fighters and higher officials. Sabri helped transport people from the guesthouse

to the airport, On one occasion, Sabri heiped get to the market. Many of the

individuals staying at the guesthouses came from the al-Farouq training camp. ISN[EJCITF

(Feb. 10, 2005).

35.  Sabri helped the guesthouse residents find weapons. According to

Sabri had a friend who was an arms dealer. The men needed the wedpons because they had to

turn in their assigned weapons when not fighting, ISNCITF (Feb. 10, 2005).

36. said Sabri also worked at the Nibras guesthouse. According to
if Sabri denied knowing about the Nibras guesthouse, it was because Nibras was a VIP

é Seel e, i.l JSN 324 FD302 éjmi 2l 2003i; 1SN 324 FD 302 iJu]i 17, 2002); 1SN 324 FD302 (May 24, 2002); dt3]

" The author (Ef a Deiartment of Defense Criminal Investipation Task Force (DODNCITF) memorandum commented

in describing statement with respect to another defainee that his credibility was in question
- AP (1), b(2), b(5), b(6)

with interogators, DOD
b(1), b(2), (5) b(6)
b(2)
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house and Sabri did not want anyone to know of his association with it. ISN“ITF (Feb. 10,
2005).

37.  Sabri was well respected at the guesthouses. (I seid this was because
Sabri was an administrator, had his own room, was able to travel without obtaining permission,
was at the guesthouse for a long time, and was respected by the guards. Sabri frequently carried
messages or took people places. ISNCITF (Feb. 10, 2005).

38.  Sabri and gad carried large sums of money to the
Kandahar airport for Usama bin Laden. knew this because he was in the same jail cell
as in Pakistan. Speciﬁcally,stated he and Sabri carried $10,000 U.S, currency
and 20,000 Saudi Riyals from the Hajji Habbash guesthouse to the Kandahar airport, and then to
a hospital. and Sabri were going to give the money to bin Laden in Kuhat, Afghanistan,
but were unable to do so because the war had started. ISNWITF (Feb. 10, 2005).

ECE—

39, Sabri worked for bin Laden. Sabri facilitated the transfer of weapons and supplies
to the frontlines. ISN WMAIO (Nov. 9, 2004). also saw Sabri with in Tora
Bora in September, 2001. explained that when bin Laden returned from Tora Bora to
the Hajji Habbash guesthoﬁse, Sabri also returned. (SN 2iso stated that while he was at
Tora Bora, he saw Sabri wear-ing the commionly issued al-Qaida military vest and carrying a
Kalashnikov. 1SN [S@ICITF (Feb. 10, 2008).

40. While did not personally witness it, he believed Sabri swore loyalty to

bin Laden because he knew bin Laden’s travel dates and routes. ISN WITF (Feb. 10, 2005).

41.  Another detainee, ISN saw Sabri at an al-Qaida
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guesthouse in Kandahar. He also saw Sabri at a bin Laden compound. ISN ﬂCITF (Dec. 3,

2002).

A2
2. additonally, TG s ffl- seor, whom ne

knew as Mashour or Salman, at the al-Ansar guesthouse in Kandahar, 1SN WI’FF (June 8,
2004). Al-Ansar was a name assigned to multiple suspicious guesthouses, but most references to
al-Ansar describe guesthouses in Kabul or Kandahar. ||| G
43, b(1), b(2}, b(6) Sabri b(1), b{2), b(B)
(1), b(2), Sabri b(1), b(2}, b(6)

B e (1) b(2), b(B) Sabri’s

b(1), b(2}, b(6)

B(1), D(2), bo)

b(1), b(2}, b(6)

o 520

S - -

Conclusion

46.  For the reasons described above and in the attached exhibifs, among others, Sabri

is lawfully detained by the United States.

12
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CITF Memorandum iMai 14i 2004i
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Defense Inelligence Agency

Background Declaration— Intelligence 101

Joint Intelligence Task i"urce ~ Combating 'E‘Efmrism

5-633-08/IT1-3A 19 September zoﬂs

{U) The Dgfense Intelligonce Agency produced the faffow!’ng‘ dogiument for the Department af
ﬂquﬁ‘ Office af the General Counsel to xiflize in federal cours Helgation,

{3t _ pursusut to 28 U8.C, § 1746, hereby declare undes penalty
of perjury that the following is troe-and correct to the best of my knowledge, informuetion, aud
belief,

1) Intelligence
(U} Intelligence is information sssential to the security of the Unlted States and TLS. Intorests,
expeetilly information that is not casily, readily, or publicly known. This information is
collected in a variery of ways by different members:of the 118, Int@%hganee Community (1C).
The type of intélligence gathered s identified by the method in which it was collected. The five
main types of intelligence are!

s (1) HUMINT- Buman Intelligence, information.derived from & person(s)

«  {U) SEGENT- Signals Intelligeace, information derived from foreign elecoromagnetic

signals tramsmitted for the ptrposes of communication

v (L) IMENT- Limagery Intelligencs, information devived from photographs and other types
of iragery. '

= (1) MASINT- Measure and Ség;nﬂmres_lﬂtali&gﬂﬁcﬁ, Information derfved from sensors.
Dratved from: Muhiple Soorees, '
Dreclnaify on MR
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» (U} OSINT- Open Source Intelligence, information that is derived from public sources
such as news media.

(U) Intelligence giithered using these methods is classified to protect the sources and methods
used by the IC. The level of ¢lassifivation depends on how sansitive the isformation is gnd the
impact the release of the informaion wonld have to U.S. Nafional Secusfty.

* (1) Confidential- Release of Confidendal information could reasonably be expected to
vatse damage to US. National Security

+ {11} Secret- Release of Secret Inforthation could regsonably be expectad to ¢ause seripus
damage-to U.S, National Security

» (1) Top Secvet- Release of Top Secret information cotld reasonably e expected to
canss exceptionally grave damage to U.S, Nudonal Security.

{U) In addition (o these clssifications, intelligente may be furthei restricted with a Sensitive
Comparusented Information (SCI) caveat. Inorder 1o gaie sccess to SCLmatesial, a person must
e “read-on™ 10 the program thit spensors the collection of that material, reading a description of
the uniquely sehsitive nuture of the protecied information and signing a conmuaitment 1o be held
accountable for the program’s secutity. -STCT information is dependent on specific methods of
collection; theréfore, release of that information would compiomise U.5. imelligence eollection
:sources und methods, '

(U) The Intelligence Community {1C)

(1) The IC is defined as s federntion of exccutive braneh agencies and organizations that work
separately and together to conduct intelligence activities necessary for advising foreign relations
and protecting the national secority of the United States, Such activities indlude:

s (U} Collection of information nesded by the President, the Mational Security Couneit and
the Secrefarias of State and Defense, and other Execative Branch officialy for the
performance of their duties and reasponsibilities;

« (1) Production, analysis and dissemination of
findshed inelfigence assoxsmants;

« (U Coleerion of information conterning, and the
conduet of seidvities 1o protect against inelligence
activities directed against the 1.8, by foraign
powers, organizations, and their agants, as well as
by international teerorists, narcotics traffickers or
other hostile forelgn elentents;

s () Administrative and othor support activitiey
within the United States and dbroad for the
performanee of muthorized activities; and

o (U Other intelligence activities as dirgcred by the President,

{15} The threats to the United States that the IC works to mitigate take several fornis. In addition
to military threats that challenged the community in the past, other transnational problems cxist!
terrorism, proliferation of chemiesl, biclogical, radiclogical, aad ruclear (CBRN) materials to

2
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potentiatly hostile elements, information infrastructure attacks. narcotics tr.afﬁékiﬁg and foreign
intelligence penetrations of sensitive programs.

{U) 1IC Members

(LY The 1C comprises 17 organizations, led by the Director of Nadonal Intelligence {DNI). EBach
member of the IC has its own expertise, mission, and area of responsibility. However, the IC
eollaborates in various forums, from informal conunanieations, o joint imteragency task forees,
As of Bxecutive Order 12333, Tuly 2008, the coramunity includes the following organizations:

»  {U) The Office of the Director of National Intelligence;
¥ (U} The Central laelligence Agency;

»  {(UjThe National Security Agency;

* (U) The Defense Intelligence Agency:

«  (U) The National Geaspatial-Tmelligence Agency;

»  (11y The Nadonal Reconnaissance Office; -

= {U)The other otfices within the Department of Dafense for the collection of specialized
national foreign intellipence throagh reconnaissance programs;

«  ({) The wmtelligence and counterintelligence clements of the Army, (e Mavy, the Air
Foree, and the Marine Corpss

= {U)The intelligence elements of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBIx

s (U} The Office of National Sccurity Intélligeace of the Drog Enforcement Administration
(DEAY,

» (U The Office of Intelligence and Counteristellizence of the Department of Energy;

»  {U} The Bureau of Inteligence and Research of the Departmant of State;

. {U} The Office of Intelligence and Analysis of the Department of the Treasory:

= {U) The Office of lutelligence and Analysls of the Depanoient of Romeland Security:

» (U} The intelligence and counterintelligence elements of the Coast Guard; and”

(1) Such other elements of any deportment or agency as may be desiguated by the
President, or designated jointly by the Director and the head of the department or agency
coticerned, as an glement of the Intelligence Community.

(U3 Although several offices of federal agencies gre members of the 10, the agency itself may
not be a member of the IC, For ¢xample, the Department of Justice (Do) as an entity is not &
member of the KC: however, the intelligence elements of the FBL and the DEA, which fadl under
the Dol are members of the Community,

(U0) 'The Infelligence Cycle -

{Uy The intelligence oycle drives the day-to-day activities of the IC., It is the process of
developing raw Information o findshed products for use by the President, military, policy

3
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mnkers, law enforcement or other decision makers for Nationat Security purposes. There are
five steps in the Intelligence Cycle:

*  Plamnisg

o Collection

*  Processing

»  Analysis and Production

v Dissemination
(U} Planning
{U) The pianning stage is the process of ideptifying
intelligence gaps or topics of intelligence intérest,
prioritizing intelligence needs, and assigaing the
appropriate organization to obtain ther intelligence. 1 fs the beginning and the end of the
cycle—the heginning becanse it involves drawiog up specific collection requirements and the
end beeavse finished intelligence, which supports policy decisions, gencraiés new regguirements,
{1} The whole process depends on guidance from public officiats. Policy makers—the
President, his aides, the National Security Coungil, and other major depariments and agsncies of

government-—initiate requests for intelligence. At the national level, the resalt of the planning
proeess.is the Natioal Intelligence Priorities Framework (NTPF),

{U) The NIPF

{1 The NIPF is the Dirsetor of Nationa? Intelligence's gridanes ¢ the 1C on the naional
ineliigénce privritics approved Dy the President, The NIPF consists oft’ (1) intelligeace topics
reviewed by the Natlanal Security Councli Principals Compitee and gpproved by the President,
(2) & process for assigning prioglioes to countries and nop-state actors relevant 1o the approved
intelfigeace ropics, and (3] a mairix showing those priotities. The NIPF matrix vefiécts
customers’ priorities for intelligence support and essures that long-term intelligence issues s
addrmssed.

(1) The Depuoty Director of Naional InteHigence for Amalysis (DDNVA), on behalf of the DN,
oversecs the process for developing recomimendstions on national inteiligence priorities.
DDNVA updates the NIPF sémi-annually in cosrdination witl IC ¢lements, the Nationa
Tntelligende Council, designated Mission Managers, and the Deputy Directors of Mational
Intelligence for Policy, Plans, and Requirementy (DDNIPPRY snd Collgotion (DDNFC). Adhoc
adjusuments may be made w reflect changes in world events and policy priorities:
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() Collection

(1)) Once Intelligence requirements #re assigned to the appropriute organization based on their
collection nssets and mission, the IC begins, or continues, t gather information to satisfy those
requirements, The collection specialties of the TC membens are as follows:

» (LN HOMINT- CIA, DIA, Military Services

» (U} SIGINT- NS A, Military Services

« (1) IMINT- NGA, NRQ, Military Services

e () MASINT- DA, Militery Services

+ (DY OBINT- Open Source Center (under ODND

(13} Processing

{U} Once imelligence is collecied, it is typically processed by analysts at the collecting agency
who detarmine s relevance to eXisting validated requirements. This involves converting the vast
mnount of collected information to & form usable by analysiy throogh decription. hngudgs
transiations, and dita veduction. Tlis date or “raw"” intelligance veporting is then reported
electronieally or in printed form to customers and to the sll-source analytic organizations
throughout the TE,

(Uy Analysis and Production

{LI) The analysix and production step, which oscurs at imelligence production centers tiroughaut
the IC, includes integrating, evalunting, and analyzing ail available data 1© determine ropics of
interest to 1O customers.  Analysts consider the information’s reliability, validity, and relevance
to standing requirements. They imegrate duta from muitiple soorees into & coherent-whole and
form judgments about its collective meaning. The resolt is finished imefligence assessments

indended to inform policy saakers of the implcations of the information. All-source apalysis
mury be performed on wpics of long-term interest and broad scape, or topics pertsmmg 4]
ongoing avents of immediate interest 1o policy makers,

(1)) Disseminetion

(1) Dissensination is the fitial step in the ioteiligence cycle. In this stup, findshed Intelligence is
cammunicated to the imelligence consumer, (© include those decision miakers whose rizeds
initiited the relligence requirements, The most highly protected finished intellipence Is fuind-
carried daily to the President and key national secwrity advisers, However, most Ruished
intellipence prodocts are stored in computer data banks that allow conswmers 1o retrteve them
slectronieally us needed. The KT constanty sirives to disseminate its products in a mmanoer and
form thar best suits its consumears. Where necessary, it will tailor support to miget the needs of
individual users. The recipients of finished intelligence producty then make decisions based on

3
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the information. These decislons may lead to the levying of more requirertients, thus wiggering
the intelligence cyele.

(U) Intelligence Reports

{11y All-source analysts ufilize a vatiety of “raw” intelligence reports 1o write finished
intelligence. (FINNTEL) products, Many of these: repotts are placed into various databases that
analysts régularly ticcess. The-agcessibility of these reports depends on their classification; T
some.cases, reports may not ho availabile to all analysts in (he community. Reports disseminated

into the reports databases are raferved W a8 “message traftic.” Some examples of reports by the
different agencies are listed below,

{07 DoD Human Intelligence Repocts

» (U} Inmtelligence Information Report (HIR), The IR ﬁs the meain Dob reporting vehicle
for the HUMINT information used by DIA and military services. Itis the ondy report
listed here that is broadly availabile in message traffic. DIA, as the proponent for these

- reponts, has also isswed reperted sumbets to 2 nuniber of executive hranch depariments
and offiees. These include;

»  Department of Commeree

«  Department of Energy

»  Department of Homelaind Secwrity (DHS)

¢ Department of Justice

«  Department of State, Bureau of Intelligente and Research
o Department of State, U.8. Ald o Inlemational Development
» Pepartment of the Treasury

»  Drug Enforcement Adminisiration

&  Federal Bureau of Investigation

s Immigration & Cuostoms Enfordement (ICB), DS

«  Wationa! Infrastructure Protection Center

»  Naztionsl Reconnaissance Office
+ U5, Coast Guard

« 118, Secret Service
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" Draft Intelligence Information Report {DIIRY:

. S-nmm&ﬁyinfermgaﬁm Report (SIR),

(1) CIA lmtelligence Reports

(U} NSA Tritelligence Reports

(LI NS A imelligence reports are most commenly issued as BGRAMz, elecironically transmitted
reporis thar convey only one issue or event. They we distinguished by an alphamameric setial
numbey, Addifional handiing instructions ihay accompaiy the serial to provide.additional
safeguards or to protect sensitive, fragile, and/ar perishable sources and methods, Aecess to
SIGINT reporting, in addition, requites approval for ageess 1o Sensitive Compartmented
Information.

() Law Enforcement Forms -

* (U} Field Document (FB 302)- FBT agents fill out this to summarize an inteeview, This
form contains the notes from the interview on the information that is collecred. The
forms are often used in court as evidenee.

* (1) Form 40 (FMA0)- The Criminal Investigation Task Porce {CTTF)-uses this form to
record investigation activity, such as whness interviews, tab results fingerprint anatyeis,
restits of modeling, research results and suspect interviews. This form is used 16 record
information relevant to how gerime was committed as wéll as the Jogical and factual
basis for any deductions about guilt. CITF conducts investigations of war erimes and w
determing H any persons captured fn the War of Terrorism are responsible. CITF
prepares cases aceording toy the Military Commissions Act for trial by a military tribunal
for war crimes and/or acts of terrorism.

{U) Intelligence Analysis

(L) Intelligence analysis is the process of disseeting and-compiling ambiguous information to
determine a trath. lotelligence amalysts undergo rigorons radecraft training. Analysts use
various methods and employ specific analytical teols to assist them in sorting add organizing the

7
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variouy pieces of information. Analysts are trained 1o mcogmze and mitigate biases, not only in

the information presented to them, but their own cognitive biases as well. The DNT issved the

Directive for Analyst Standards-in 2007, to ensure tharall intelligence analysts in the TC use the
same standards of excel&ence mtegnty and objectivity in their assessments,

i 1y Anixlyﬁis* Huﬂdiﬂg L Aua!ym Arg,muenf

1, Establish o baseline asstszmonkt What do we know Is galng on, what do we think i going o, and
what do not we know that we need s figure out?

2. Vet new infarmution for canmtcnev withi the basefine. Js i it in the bl ipack of the: bmahn&’ }}ects
itsay the same thing or doos it reveal new developments? Does it ndd new details sbont sometliing we

| aimaﬁy know ¥ Tibes it say mmclluug ougtandish o contradiciory {6 réports from sourcés that o 'more
i refiable? .

| ¥ Revise Yot buaseline as necdssary fo Sccompnolnte mesv informnnon. I therais. mmmmcmty '

b repoiting of cqual!}r zood qualisy, sekuow ?&dg& this ind explore wiys | might, e recoreiled, I thers e
no gagd-towrtes or reports with which 1o establistareliabli basefine, acknowledg the weakugss of the -
roporting s ke your Bt esti e

4, Fnumv-up informmtion gups ax zhu Irecome nppareni. Learn about and task edlection resources
us apprépriate actoss the [C 1o gonerte new infoemation, Waork cimely with gollectors: wheﬁemr
pm\I i‘:s]e. :

(1) Evaluating Sources

(U7} Intelligence analysts must consider the source of intelligence while reading intelligence
reports. Several factors help determine the credibility of a HUMINT source, mostimportantly
placement and access to the Information, and the motivation for reporting. Much like informant
reporis recéived by law epforcement official, HUMINT sources are carefully screened and
subsequently rated on their relinbility, both on the source themselves and the information
provided. Inteltigence reponts include a source line that gives a description of the source and
their assessed credibility by fhe reporting officer. Purther, the analyst uses this infornation in
their oversll assessment of the-intelligence provided and haw it relates 1o other available
intelligance on the same problem set.
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» (U) Soaree’s motivation {ieform or influence)

« (1) Q1) Wittingaess of the source, and their knnwledge that the U.S, government will
receive the information provided

2. A context statement which provides details regarding the circumstances in which the source
obtalned information in the report..
(1) Intelligence analysts take additional steps (o determine sonrce reliability, including:
v () Verification of intelligence by othér means
Other HUMINT gources
Historical reporting
Other intelligence disciplines (IMINT, SIGINT, MASINT, etc
»  Review of captured documents and electronic media
e  {U) Collaboration of intelligence from olher members of the Commuonity
» (U7} In some cases, a HUMINT source may be polypraphed

(U} Interrogators are trained to recognize non-verbal cues from the source that will help them
determine the credibility of the information provided. Interrogators are also trained to take
culturial dynamics to undesstand the unique psychologival issues dealing with sources based on
cuttural norms. This provides the collectors and interrogators additionsl insights into deceptive
behaviors,

{U) SIGINT, and more specifically communications intelligence (COMINT), is derived from the
exploitation of cryprographic systems ar other protected sources through the applicgtion of
specific methods or techriques. In general, SIGINT reporting is deemed reliable since the
infermation comes directly from the communicant(s). However, the information may he
deliberately misleading if the communicants suspect they are being monitored and deliberately
give false information, or they. may be deceptive with the Individuals they are communicating
with, or they may have a history of providing inaccurate Information.

W

L'

Y

(L) Befors & finished intelligence product is disseniinated, It goes through a rigorous
coordination process, both in the producing organization and with peers throughout the IC. The
coordination process ensures there is a conseusus on the assessment, and any credibility issues
are addressed.

Thave read this declaration and concur with the findings and conelusion.

Enclosures:
L. Appendix A, (U) Special Regulations and Designations for Terrorists
2. Appendix B, HCT NIPR Couriterterrorism Priorities, June 20008
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3. Appendix C, NTPR CT Priorities Terrorist Support Entities June 2008
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Appendix A, (U) Special Regulations and Designations for Terrorists

(U) Specially Destgnated Global Terrorist (SDGT) .
(U) Executive Order 13224, empowars the Departoent of Siate and the Depavimunt of the-

Treasury to place Both-groups and individuals on the $pecially Destanated Global Terrorist list,

which defines terrorism as; an serivity that 1, involves a violent act or an act dangerous 1o
human life, property, or infrastructure; and 2. appears 16 be intended (o intisnidate or Coerce 2
civilian population; to influence the policy of a government by iatimidation or coercion; or to
affect the conduct of a govermment by musy destroction, assassination, kidnapping, of hostage
teking. This also includes any activity tiat provides financisl, msterial, or technologieal support
(o-acts of errotism or entities desiznated n or wader the Onder,

(1) Fareign Terrorist Organization (FT0)

{U} A Foreign Terrordst Organization (FTQ) is a forsign organization designated by the
Secretary of State in accordancs with secrion 219 of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA),
as gmended. FTO designations play a eritical role it our fight against terrorism snd are an
effective means of curtailing support for terrorist activities and presswring groups to get out of
the terrorism bosiness,

{1H The Qfice of the Coordbaator For Counter Termurism in the State Bapm“{ﬁ}ﬁnt {§/CTY

. chotinually monitors the sctivities of terrerist gronps active avound the wotld to idengiy potential

targets for designation. When reviewing potential targets, S/CT looks at the actual terrorist
sttacks that a group has carried out and whether that group has engaged in planding and
proparations for possible future acts of terrorism or setains the capability and fntent fo carry om
such aets.

() After a target is idemified, S/CT prepares o detuiled "grdministrative record,” whichi is a
campitation of information, fypically neluding both lassified and ppen sources information,
dempnstrating that the stututory criteria for designation have been satisfied, If the Secratary of
State, in consultation with the Attomey General and the Secretary of the Treasary, deeldes 1o
make the desigiation, Congress is notified of'the Secretary’s ingent {0 designate the nr—gani'mﬁon
and given seven days to review the designation, a5 the INA requires. After the expiration of the

séven-day walling period and i the absondd of Congressinmal action o block the designation,

notice of the designation is published in the Federal Register, al which point the designation
takes effect. By law, an organization designated as @ FT'O may seek jndicial review of the
designation in the Uniled States Court of Appeals forthe Distsict of Columbia Circuit not later
than. 36 days after the designation is published in the Pederal Register.
(U Until cocently, the INA provided that FTOs must be re-designated every two vears or the
designation would lapse. Under the Inteltigence Reform and Tervorism Preventinn Act of 2004
{TRTPAY. howaver, the re-designation requirement was replaced by cerfain review and
revocation procedures, TRTPA provides that an FTO may {ile a petition for revocation 2 years
afier its designation date {or in the case of re-designated FT'Os, #ts most recent re-designation
date) or 2 years after the determination date on its most recent petition for revocation. Tn order to
provide a basis for revocation, the petitioning FTO mmust provide evidence thar the circamstances
mrmmg the basis for the designation are sufficiently different as to warrant revocation. If no
such review has been conducted during 8 five-year perfod with respect to a designation, then the
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Secretary of Staie is required 10 review the designation 1o determine whether sevocation would
He approprinte.  In addition, the Secretary of Siate may at gy thme revoke o designation opoa A
finding that the circomstances fortiing the basis for the designation bave changed jn such a
miner as to warrant revocation, or that the natlonal security of the United Stages warrants a
revacation. The same procedural requirements apply to revoeations made by the Secretary of
State as apply to designations. A designation may be revoked by an Act of Cangn.s:, or set aside
by a Count order.

{U) Legal Criteria for Desiguation
{17 Cider Saction 219 of the TNA, 18 avemded:

LU} 1. Ik mwst'be a Forelgn organization,

{U} 2. The orgauization muyst sngage in wecrorist acttvity, as defined in sectlon 212
(B of the INA (B UL.C. § LIS2)AXBY,F or terrorism, as defined la section
140(d)( 2} of the Forelpn Refations Anthorkzation Act, Fiscal Years 1988 and 1989 (22
1L8.C. § 26565(AN2)),¥* or retnin the capability and intent (0 engage in ferrorist aetivity
or terrorism,

{U) 3. The organization’s emorist activity ar terrorism st threaten the secarity of U.S.

nationals or the national seeusity (natlonal defense, foredgn relarions, or the coonomie
ntaresrs) of the United Siates.

() Legal Ramifications of Deslgnation’

#

(N L T is urdawfid for a person in the Thited States or subject to the jurisdiction of the
United States 1o kaowingly provide "material suppart or resouvess” o a designated FTO.
{The term “muaterial support or resonrces” is defined in 18 T.5.C. § 2339A0)(1) a8  any
property, tangible pr intngible, or service, inclading cntrency or monsiury insiruments or
finnncinl secwities, finacial services, lodging, traming, expert ndvice or assistance,
safehouses, false documentution. or identification, commenications equipment, facilities,
wenpons, lethal subatances, explosives, personnsl (1 or mere individeals who maybe or
include oneself), and transportation, except stedicine or religions materials.” I8 US.C. §
2339A(b)X(2) provides that for these porposes “the term “training’ means instruction or
teaching designed to impart a specific skill, 2s oppased 1o geperal knowledge.” 18 U.8.C,
§ 2339A0B)3) further pravides that for these purposes the term “expert advice or
assistinee” means advice or assistonce derived from scientifie, techpical or other
speeighzed knowledge.””

(L) 2. Representatives and members of a designated FTO, if they are aliens, are
inadmissible 1o and, in certain circomstances, removable from the United States (see 8
URS.CL 88 1182 Ga)X3m(IV-(Vy, 1227 ()(L(A).

(1N 3. Any 1.8, financial institution that becomes award that it hes possession of or
control over funds in which & desigpated FTO or its ngent has an interést must retain
possession of or control over the funds and report the fuuds  the Office of Foreign
Assets Contol of the 118, Deparument of the Treasury.

(U Oher Effects of Designation

(U L. Suppods our efforts.to cuth terrorism fi inancing and eheotrages other n&uoﬁs tor da
the same.

2
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* () 2. Stigmatizes and {solates designated terrorist organizations internationally.

v« {11 3, Deters donmations or contributions to #nd econornic transactions with mamed
organizations,

*  (U) 4. Heightens public awarenesy and knowledge of terrorist organizdtions.

« {11} 5. Signals to othér goveriments our concern-about named ofganizations,
{U} Current List of Designated Forelgn Terrovist Organizations

1. Abu Nidal Qrganization (ANQ)

2. Abu Sayvaf Group

3. Al-Aqgsa Martyrs Brigade

4, Aj-Bhabaab

5. Angar w-Islan

6. Armed Islamic Group ((B314)

7. Asbat al-Ansar

8. Aum Shinrikyo

9, Basque Fatherland and Liberty {ETA)

1. Communist Party of the Piilippines/fNew People's Army (CFPANPA)

11. Continuity Frish Republican Army

12, Gama'a ak-Islamiyya (slague Group)

13. HAMAS (Islamic Resistance Movement)

14. Harakat vl-Fihad-i-Islami/Bangladesh (HUI-B)
15, Harakat ul-Mugahidin (FIUM)

16, Hizballah (Party of God}

17. Islamic Jihad Group
- 18. Tslamic Movement of Ubekistan (IMU)

19, Jaish-e-Mohammed (JEMVD (Army of Mohapuned)
20, Jemaah slamiye orgacization (J1)

21, sd-Jihad (Bgyption Islamic Jilad)

22, Kahape Chai {Kaclh)

23. Kongra-Gel (KGK, formerdy Kurdistan Workers’ Pasty, PKK, KADEK)
94, Lashkar-e Tayyiba (LT (Army of tie Righteous)
25. Lashkar § JThangvi .

26 Liberation Tigers of Tamil Belam (LTTEY

27, Libyan Istamic Fighting Group (LIFQ)

13
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28. Maroocan Islamic Combatamt Group (GICM)

29. Misjabedin-¢ Khalg Qtganization (MEK)

30, National Libermtion Army (ELN)

31. Palegtine Liberation Front (PLID

32, Palestinian Islamic Jibad (P11}

33, Popular Front for the Liberation of Palestine (PELP)
34, PFLP-General Command (PFLP-GC)

35, ol-Quida (al-Qa'ida)

36, al-Qaida in the Islamic Maghreb (Formetly GSPCY
47, Real IRA ,

38, Revolutionary Armed Forces of Colombia (FARC)
39, Revohnidnary Nuclel (formerly ELA)

40. Revottonary Organization 7 Nevember

4]. Revoludonary People’s Liberation Putg/Front (DHEP/O)
42, Shining Path (Seaders Luminoso, SL)

43, Tapzim Quidat al-Jihad {1 Bilad al-Rafidayn (QIBR) (al-Qaidn in {raq) fformery J e
al-Tawhid wa'al-Tihad, IT7, al-Zargawi Nerwork)

44. United Self:Dafense Forces of Colombia (AU

14
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Appendix B, Interagency Intelligence Committee on Torrorizm NIPF Coarnterterrorism Priorites,
hine 20008
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Appendix €, NIPF CT Priotities Terrorist-Support Entities June 2008

. (U Priprity, b ' R

(U) Priority 2;
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(U Briority 3

Definiticn!
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U} Priowity 4
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Defonse Intelligence Agency

Background Declaration - Terrorist Training Camps

Jolnt ntelligence Tagk Foree ~ Combatlng Terrorism

' 19 September 2008

(t) The Beﬁ?rzss Iutelligence Agency produced the following document for the Depariment zrf
Defense Office of the Genurad Counsel to utifige fu foderad court Btigation.

wy 1, R v csvant o 28 USL. § 1746 heveby deciare under penalty of perjury that
the following is trae aud correet to the hest of my knowledge, information, and belief.

(Uy Afgham Training Camyps: 1989 - 2001
(U} Overview:

(B}%ﬁmnpmeakﬁawns

Corivid fromis Multige Sowes. ]
Dechasillon: Subiser i ety Drindymational spssemsn

—r—p g e AAE AR
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B
_ .

{6} Al-Qaida Camps

{U) Al-Faroq Training Canrps




- Case 1:06-cv-01767-UNA Document 178-1 Filed 07/29/09 Page 51 of 249 -

(1) According w The /11 Commission Report at least seven of the 911 hijackers who provided
“muscle” for thie attacks went through a basic training regime at the al-Farug camp, and one of
the pilots, Hani Hanjour, was identified for inclusion in the plot viile training st al-Farag, The
Cammission concluded this particular camp appears to have been the prefered location for
vetting and training the potential muscle hijackers because of its proximity to Usama Bin Ladin
and other al-Qaida senior leaders,

(1) Mes Aynak

(U) Tarnak Farms aka Abn Obeida Traming Camp

. - 3 l - -
.

T
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£U) Camps Utilized by al-Qaida and Others

(1) Derants Tratning Camp Compiexes

(13 The Derumnta training complex, located 15 miles from Jalalabad, Afghanist'sm was a set of
advanced tersorist raining camps offering tralning in various explosives, poisons, and chemical
warfare ngents. Coalition forces destroyed the camp in Qctober 2001,

i —
EUJ Perugta: Cupricuahus

| AR |
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(ﬁ) Pervunta: Students of Abn Kliabab sl-Masri

_
I
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(U} Sads Tiaining Camp
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——

{1} Kbaldan Crmp
I
() While the Khaldan camp was not an al-Qalda :f&nilf}iiy; Abu Zubaydah hed an agteement with

bin Ladin to cenduct reciproval recruiting efforts whereby promising-irainces at the Khaldan
cump thit they could join al-Quida if destred,

P o T D L
P L B LY LA T
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Iy Abu Yahya Camp for the Libyun Islamic Fighiing Greup

_and conclosion,
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UNITED-STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

MASHUR ABDULLAH AL-SABRI,

Petitioner,

v, Civil Action No. 06-CV-1767 (RMU)

GEORGE WALKER BUSH et al.,

Respondents.

N e N e WL A N N N

Declaration of B8 R :
Names, Aliases, Kunyas and Variants
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Detinse Intelligence Agency

Background Declaration — Names, Aliases, Kunyas and Variants
Defense Intelligence Agency

Juint Intelligence Task Foree — Combating Tervorism

,s.?«sm-osmmusﬁ 19 Sepember 2008

me Pefense Intelligence Agency produved the following dovasnent for the Department of
Defense Office af the General Counsel (o utilize in federel conrt ltigation,

I, pursuant o 28 U.S.LC. § 1746, hereby declare under ponalty of

p&‘:}jﬁ;}’ that the following is true und correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and
belief

() Worldwide: Using Names, Alinses, Kunyas and Varviants

Apabi niigration and the spread of Tslam around the world intermixed with local ethno-lnguistic
traditions asd cultural practives produce regional variations in the way Arabdc sames are
constructed, pronounced and spelled. These vadations; along with differencés in standards. for
the teansliteration of foreign pames by U8, military, inteltigence and Jaw enforcement
m*gamzauﬂm present challenges for the collection, teporiing, and wialysis of intelligenze. The
tack of a direct corretation betwezn Ambic And Latin aiphabets, combinted with these
cﬂmplaxines. isof pamz:uim importance to analysts while in today’s Counterterrorism
erviromment. ' While using alases and other forms of mumpie identitie is not unigue to these
groups, this declaration will limil itself to providing & basic primer ot Arable-related Issies to
address the detainee population at Cuantanmumo,
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i
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15! :E}:amrent's- of Arabic Namas

(U} Traditionally Arabic names are comprisud of five elements: jsta, kunya, nasab, fagab, and
nisha, This naming convention is widely used by Muslim populations and in countries with
significant. Muslim inflpence around the world, although varying depending on the-county or
region,

. () lem- The {sa Is.thie proper name given'at birth. Tlis part of the name is considered the
© most personal of the eloments. In some aress, it-is impolife to call an elder by their ism, yet
- i other areas; i is conmon to call people by their ism.

s (1)) Kenya- The kuoya is teaditionslly an honotific, which denates that the person is sithet
* a mother or father, and is constructed using the nanw of the farst-bom son or eldest
* dauglhter if the persont hasno sons. The kunya for a man is Abu, meaning father of, plus
i ‘the name of the Hrst-burn; while Uitim ig used for women, meaning mother of, with the
i nama of the first-born. For example, Abu Ibrahim means father of Torahim. Addressing
* someong by his oi her kunya is g sign of respect.

v | (U) In addition, there are several nicknames that usé an “Abu® construction, that are not

" true kunyas. Much likeihie neme Jaek s vsed as a nickname for John, many commonly
uged kutyas are used as-nicknames that do not bear direet resefublémcs to the given name.

- Far example, Abu Sadeq is 1 nickname for Jafar, and Abu Al s 4 nickiwme for Haskdn,

» (L)) Inzurgents, radicals and terrprists conimanly use kavyas as assumed names or

- pseudonvms. Kunyas used in this munver are often chosen, or given, without regard to the

_ children’s names or vegard to whether the individual has children. In this case, véing the

. kunys conceals the individual’s identity, - Further, it is offen used as a security, denial and

" doveption meastre. The reasons for un insurgent choosing o certain kupya varies widely.
4t coulil be the vegion they are from such'as Zarqawi (ftom Zarqa), Sui (the Sytan), or al-

- Masti (the Bgyptian). It can be derived from the early heroes of Islamic conquest, ke Abu
Ubaydsh, one of three wha led expeditions against Byzantivm, [t can be derived from past
histarical or Militant Tslaniist leaders like Abu Azrain, nanred after the spiritual foundsy of
al-Quida Abdullah Azzam.

» (1) Nasab- The nasub is a pedigres, which denotes the family lineage on the father’s side,

and can go back several geaerations. In muay countes ibn or bin, is used for males (ihe

. gon 61} and bint for feimales (the danghter of), while in other countries the tames are simply
lisked i1t sequence. Forexmnple, Hdsan ibn Parej, would-mean, Hasan, son of Farhj.

© Another exaniple using multiple generations woald be Hasan jbn Faraf ibn Ahmed ibn

. Mohammad, meaning Hasan, son of Fara), who ls the son of Ahmed, who is the son of
Mohamund. in some reghons, that same name may wppear as Hasan Faraj Ahined. Atrog
name psually consisig.of the izm, nasab and the nigba.
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¢ (1) Lagab- The lagab is a-combination of words thal describe some religious or admizable
quality of the person and is used as a secomdmy name, Tn some vases, it is used in place of
the jsm. A comumon lagab includes ong of the 99 names of God and “Abd,™ or servant of,
. for example, Abd al Rabman, or servant of the Merciful. Theie is no such name gy
. “Abdul” in Arabic, even thouph we commenly seathis in Baglish. This is a mis4ranslation
- of “Abd,"™ which is followed by the article™al. Laqab can also comote a person's
" profession like Samir al-Haddud, which mheans Samir whose family members ot onertime
- weyg blacksmiths, Another popular Ingab of course is Hajj or Haji, muaning the person has
- made their pilgrimage o Mever, Hke Halj Amin al-Flassein.

« - {11} Nisba- The nisba is another secondary name that describes the oceupation, descent,

" fribe or residence of the person. Tt can be used in conibination with any of the sbove
elemends, but will always be the last parl of the name. For example, Mohammad al Masyi,
mesns Mohammmd from Bgypt, or usiig several elenvents, Mohammad ol Husayn ibn
Haran al Qubtard means Mohammad the beawtiful, son of Aaron, from the Qahtani tribe,

. The nisha can tell you much of tw persons ancestry and peographic origing, for instarice al-

* Zawalviri although from Egyypt, comes fom the Zawilir clan of the Hejaz region of Sandi
Axabis. Ayman al-Zawshini attempts to bolster his Arab Hneage by msking these

. sannecHons,

» (I} The following exauple oses o title-and all five elements ¢f the smning convention:
_ Muliah Mohiararaid Abu Nasar Abd al Rahimen, bin Thrdhim bin Hasan al Makikd; Multah
* {title) Mohammad {ism) Abu Nasar (kunye) Abd al Rahman {laqab) bin Thrabim bin Hasay
- (nasub, 2 generations) o] Makda (nisba), Tlis name would translate w the tsacher
Mohammud, father of Nasar, servant of the Mereiful, son of {brabim, grandson of Hasan,
from Mecesa.

(1) Speliing Varianis

(1) Bocause Arubic and Bnglish have severad lelters representing sounds that do not correspond
direstly, several letiers or letter combinations aro psed interchangeably t represent the same
sound, This oflen geuerates muliiple Bnglish spellings representing the same word or name in
Arabic. Other diffevences-in practice, such #s whether to uso double or single consonants to
oxpriess 4 single sonnd, Forther increase varation. | is vonumon o seé intelligence roports
refercnoing an individual with several different name spellings. Although, most organizations
hava-established naming swndards for common names, this is not consistent throughout the
intefligence Community (1C)and has changed over tinwe.

v | {1J) Other spelling variables inchude capitalization, 4nd the use or non-use of dashes,
_ apostrophes and sprces. In some cases, apostrophes replace a lefters that doe not }mnslam
 jrito- Enghish, such as the Arabic Jetter “ayn,” which —h&&_a—distfznt,:t sound notused i
_ Boglish. For example, the name Mohmuomad has over 20 vaciations and alternate spellings
" afal-Qaida Include al Qaida, al Qa'ida, and al-Qaeda. .

. (1) Some commonly imerchanged lettors mclode: - |
e K, KH, (R and Q such as: Kandiahisr, Khiadnhar, Ghantdahar or Qandahar

3
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» 0 and U, such a8t Mohammad or Muhamaad
« A and B, snch as; Abmad, Ahmed
¥ 0 and U, sueh a3 Noor, or Nar

» - (U).Some commonly interchunged words and speffings include:

« Al Ul and Uz, as in: Mohammad al Rabman, Mobammad vl Rahrnan or Mohamniad
ur Rahman

» b Din, and Uddin, as bx: Nasar ul Din, or Nasaraddin
» Abd U6 and Abdul, as in: Abd ul Rahman or Abdud Rabam

{U) Various titles may be added to the beginning of the name, similar to titles used tn Western
traditions, Although these specific titlus are more comimon in the Arab world, similar titles are
used in Afghanistan or Pakistan, from where mimy fighters are recrutted.

- Mulish- Religlous leader
© Imam- Reéligions leader (a3 in clergy)
Haiji- Someone who went on # pilgrimage to Mecea
Shaykh- Tide of high respect; usually a leader of sonre kind {tribal, ete)
Qari- Someone who can recite the Quiun with a specific rhythm
- Qazi/Quadi- Lawyer or judpe (on Sharia)
Ustad- tewcher or professor
Taltb- student (Afghan)
. Maliem, or Malauwi ~ religious loader (Afghani)
- Akhond- lawyer (Afghan)

"R T T T R NN NS TN 3

{h Thﬁ challenges of spelling and translating the use of Arab and Mustim nfluenced names is
furtlyer complicated for individuals otiginating from countries with conventions based in pther
cultaral-traditions, especially when combined with sigrificant differences in prorumeiation as
well as the use of other loeal languages nnd alphabets,

(U0 The source of the reporting can also huve a significant impact ot how names are spelled,
Seutces may have e regional dialect, which may complicate the ragsliterstion of the name
phonetically, or misunderstanding the pame completely, Some reporting originates Trom foreign
sources using different letters to represent Arabic sounds. For example, in Spanith, the “h” is
often substitted with *5,” thus Mohammiad wonld be spelled “Majemmad.” In French North
Afrita, Sherief is Cherfef. ’

{17y Allnsey

(1)) Aliases ¢an take moaltiphe foring, from pant of'a true name, 10 & something completely
nnrelated to ihe frue name. Like a nickname, some aliages are descriptive of physical traits, such
as Masar al Tawi] (Nagar the Tall). Aliases can also be just a single word, such as Tareq,

- Terrorists do use multiple alfuses, often changing them in-different focations. Nicknamis also
proviide a degree of “cover” or operational secwity. Inaddition to theses aliases, many "
individnals will use “call signs” for security porposés, A call sign is simply another name tint is

4
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only used during Indireet communication. These call sigas may change depending on with
whom one is communioating, ar whese they are located.

(U) Confidence Measurey for Jdentifieation.

(L) Intelligence analysts consider all of thege fiwtors when making assessiments about & specific
indtvidual or groyp, The biggestasset o svanalyst is an understanding of the complexiiies of
this particelar problem set. Through tralning, experence, and drawing on the expertise of senior
anafysts, subject matier experts and linguists at their disposal, analysts lear the meny veriables
they need o tuke Into account. Analysts nse many tools end moeesses o tidke confident
assesstnents, some of these include;

» (U} Database programs generally include features allowing the user to search on variants to
; -acoonnt for different trunsliterations or reporting conventions. These tools may include
. wildeatd or pattern mutching searches, fuzzy word searches, and phonetic matching
! glgerithms. In addition, some databasss have maeros, which smploy a list of name variants
" baged on historlesl search results. Asalysts then use additiona! known details and other
s reporting to make confident assessments.

»  {UD Through research and analysis of multiple teparting sources, anatysts are often able to
~ determing the various rames.used, Corfoboration and ¢ollaboration within the IC helps
analysts confinm identitics.

»  (U)Documents and media recovered from the detainee at the time of detention, and from -
* other spurces can help confitm identifications and/or provide further avenuss of
| gssessment. Somie-ditainees have forged documents, such os fake passports, that allow
- analysts to determine alternative identities of s detainee,

3
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v | (U} Photographs, teken during the detainee’s in-progessing and those captured with the
detainee, provide an additiond] resounce to determing identity. Analysts show these photos
- tomultiple sources in order to get a consenss on the individual(s) in the photograph. The

photo identifications (PID) can verify the identity of the detasinee and his associates, as well
as validate suspected relationships.

(II}.'ﬁ‘mmlusian

{1 Distainees often: use aliases and oover siories to hide teir aclual aglivilies; however, it Is
diffiondt 1o nmintsin these cover stories over time, Tnierrogators uote any changes in details in
the Story, which occur when the topic is reviewed multiple times over 2 significant thme period,
Anlysts compare these storics agaiost other detuigee reporting as well a8 other sourees of
intelligenoe te find inconsisiencies and valnerabiliies in the cover story, develop farthér lines of
ques;nnnmg, as well 45 10 corroborate the reliability and validity of truthfu! fnformstion. The IC
mitigatey the challenges that fareign language and culiural practives cause in this cotaplex
ervirowment, Through advice provided by foreipn aren specialists, experience, education, and
sgpedialized toals, analysts anc eble to identify-—with confidence—persons of interest or concem,
mcludmg detainees.

1 Imfve rend this declaration md concur mithrthe-ﬁndings and conelusion.
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APPENDIX A

Comman Country and Tribal Names

Ma_hie Geographie Adjectives in Names and Equivalents

Al-Adan

From Aden, Yomen

Al-Afrigi, al-Afriki

The African

Al-Ajami (actually al-
“Ajami)

Litersfly “the foreignar® bt almost always pertains to Persians
(franian, but U could also apply W any Perstan speaker—Iranian,
Tajik, or Dari-speaking Afghan),

-al-Balgiki

AlAjnabi, al-Agnabi | The Foreigner{i.g., not from “here”, or “not one of us.” NOTE: I
b “Agnabi” the “g™ may hnply an Bgyptian context.) Al Ajnabi is
i untikely to be part of a.terrorist nom de guerry, but may be
' considered an indication that the person 5o named is considered &

1 “foreigner” or "an outsider” by those using the term.

Al-Almani The GGerman "

Al-Anariki The Anerican

Al-Andatusi { From Andalusia {southern Spain)

Alwé\nﬁrsi' Thie man :&mﬁ Artwerp

Ala-énsari  Literatly mesnifg “the supporter” and originally referring o

- persons in Medinag who aided the Prophet Mubawioad, al Ansar? as
now used among jhadists typically means “local jihadist’—as
opposed to al-Muhajir, which means “foreign fghter”

Al-Arjantini The Argentinean

Al-Armini The Anmenian

Aini.sm {actually al- | From southwest Saudi Arabia

*Asiri)

Al-Ayrlandi. al-landi | The Frishman

Al-Baddwi The Bedouin

Al-Baljikd, al-Biljiki, | The Belgian

§ The man frora Banglodesh

| Al-Banghati
| Al-Banghtadishi Themwaty from Bungladesh
Al-Baritant, al-Britani The Brit
7
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M——Bedaui The Bedouin

Al-Brazili The Braitian

At—i?sritani, al-Baritani, | The Brit “

AI-’E;%m’EughaIi - The Portuguese

Al-Dannoarki The Dane

A1-Erniradd, al-hoaratl | The man from the United Arab Emirates B

'Aléﬁng}.izi.. al-Tnktizi, '
al-Inghzi, al-Injalizi

{ The Baghishman

Al-Faranst, al-
Faransawi

The Frenchman

Al-Farsi, al-Farisi

The Peisiun,_ the Itanian

Al-Fasi

From Fez, Morocoo

Al-Filagtini | The Patestinian

ﬁiwl’%’iﬁ’biﬁi | The Filipine (fram the Philippines) |
‘.AunFi.ymmm:i The Viemamese T
g‘sl»fi_‘ﬂmt.li | The Ghanaian

Al'-Gitimb% The Westerner

Ai-"f;;h'-ﬁmi { From the Hathamat régiﬂn 6f Yemen
.Ai%f_;{a{abi { From A%&pﬁo; Syria |
 Al-Flijazu 7 Froms western Sandi Arabia

Al-Blindi The Indian |
v AETE;H alandi The Hollander, from The Netherlands
Al-Ifranji, al-Ifiangi | The European ' ‘

Al-Tghtigi [ The Greek

Al-T (dictually al
Tiji)

- Pejorative Traqi slang for & Westerner

Ad-dmarati, al-Bmirati

The man from the United Arab Emirates

Al-Ejaliz, al-Inglizi,
at,wl?.h glizi, al-Inklizi

The Englishiman

The Englishman

Al-Inklizi, ab-Injatizi,

I—
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{ al-lnglizi, al-Englizi

Al-frani The Tranian

Aldragi The Iagi

Al-frlmxdi, uifAynlaué} The lrishman

Al-fghani Vhe Spaniard

j&!-[gskutlandi - 1The Scot |

1“ ~Islandi The Teelander

AliIseaili The fsracli

Al-.i:anubi The Southerner

Al-Junfi From the Faaf region of Yemen ér.ii.,a&rii Arabia
| Al-Tazai The Algerian.

Al-Karmirani From the Camercons,

Al-Banadi : The Canadian

Al-Karlbi | From the Casibbean

Al-Kashmid - From Kashmir

Ab-Khotij - From the (Persian) Gulf

Aﬂi&hawag&, él,~ ‘ Litvmﬂly meaing “Sir," or “Mister™ {uéﬁi ésﬁae&aﬂyfw Christtans

Khawei, al-Khawagi, | and Westeruers, with or without the name of the person so

. addressed), kimwaga/khawsji bas 8 streel slang meaning, especially
in Egypt, simiflar to calling sovoeose g “gringe.” *Al-Khawaja™ is
unlikely to be part of 4 terroxist nommerde-guerre, but-can be
1 considered a likely indicafion the reference is to-a Christian or
Westerner considered to be “foreign™ or “an outsider” to those
using the term. )

AlKinj The Kenyan
Al-Kubowi | The Cuban
ARKut The Korean
AT—KU wayti The Kuwaiti
Al-Libi The Libryan
Al-Libiri The Liberian
Aiﬁﬁmbﬁmﬁ | The Tebsnese

I
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Al-Msdani | From Meding, Smudi Arabix
Aluﬁsffaghribi The Moroccan
Al-Majari, al-Magari | The Hungarlan
Al-Meklawi; al- | From Mecea, Saudi Arabia
Adb-Muagel, al-Misri The Egyptian
Al-Miksiki ‘The Mexican
Ad-Muliajir | Literally “the emigram” and ortginally referring t & petson “x.vht\
fled from Meccs to Meding with the Prophet Muhatumad, al
Muhajir as now used smong jibadists typically means “foreign
fighter.”
Al-Muritani/Mauritani | From Menritania
Al-Ngbulsi From Nablus, {n the West Bank, Palestine
Al-Kajdi - From central Saudi Arabis
A;;-i%%ﬂﬁibi A pejorative fm‘ Sunnis ysed by Shi‘a
Al-Nimgawi | The Austrian |
Al-Nhubi B T The Nubian-{from ares near border b&twaétl Egypt and Sudan)
.Ai»ﬁ&ur%}i The Norwegian -
At-;«l;arsi, al-Farsi ”i‘iw Persian, the Iranian
Al-Qamarl From the Comotes Islands
AL{EQubmsi The Cypriot; from (Lyprus
Al-Qudsi Frotn Jerugalowy
. M‘fﬁaﬂﬁhi | A pejorative for8hl'a i:s'ed by Sunnis that Hierally -
; 7 | “rejectionist”
Al-Romant ‘The Romantan
Al-Russi The Russian 7 7
Al-Saidi From ﬁpperﬁg—ypt (i-e., the upland area a.f'sautmrsgym}, _
Al-Safawi Pejorative For Persians {typically teday meaning Ixamang but it
: { could apply to any Persian-speaker—Iranian, Taiik, or Dari-
| speaking Afghan).
Al-Samaira'i From Samarra, brag

10
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AlSaudi The Saudi
Al-Shami "I‘he Syrian, or from Damaseus; the Nﬂf&&tﬁ& (esp. when North
. Yenren)
Al-Sharql, dl-Sharagqi | The Eastornor
Al-Shili The Chilean
Al-Shimali | The Noctherner
Al-Shighani | The Chechen
Al-ini, al-Sinani | Tho Chinese
Al-Sinighali The éeﬁ&éalﬁﬁe
Al-Sktlands The Scot
Al-Sudani The Sudanese
Al-Sumali The Somah
Al-Buxi The Syrlan
Al-Suwidi The Swwiﬁ 7
Al-Suwisri From Switzerand, the Swiss
ALTHE From Ta*if, Saudi Arabia
Al-Tabuki From Tabuk, Saudi Arabia
Al-Tanzat The Tanzanian
Al-Trabulsl, ab | Firom Tripol, either Libya or Lebanon
 Trabelsi, al-Tarabulsl |
Al-Tripidadi 1 The Trinidadian
Al-Tshiki, ’lhe. {Czech
Al-'fwnsi;alﬂ’un 16 : The Tunisian
ALTurki | The Tuk
Al-Usmani (acmaﬁy-ai.— The Omani
| *Urmani)
Al-Urduni | The Jordanian
}J-Gmbd _ The European
AlLizbiki, al-Uzbeki | The Usbek
J a_l«?abafﬁ: The Japanesoe
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Al-Yamani The Yanam

A=Y unani The Greek

12
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FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

 MASHUR ABDULLAH AL-SABRI, :
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GEéRGE WALKER BUSH et al,, g
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Use of Intelligence Products in the Targeting and Operatlonal Cycles
in Operation Enduring Freedom (OEF) U//-)

I, Robert H. Holmes, pursuant to 28 U.5.C. § 1746, hereby declare
and say as follows:

1. (U//-) This is in response to the request from the Office of
General Counsel for a declaration for Habeas Corpus litigation
regarding the current procedures used to employ intelligence to
locate and capture persons of interest on the Afghanistan -
battlefield. As the Deputy Director of Operations for U.3. Central
Command, I am responsible for overseeing the operations of both
special operations and conventional forces within the U. 8. Central
Command (USCENTCOM) area of operations (AOR}, to include '
Afghanistan. From the initial stages of Operation Enduring Freedom
(OEF), U.S. special operation forces (SOF) have located and
disrupted terrorist networks through the use of intelligence. While
the particular tactics, techniques and procedures have changed over
time, the process under which OEF operators acguire and utilize
battlefield intelligeénce remains relatively constant.

2, (U/-) General., Intelligence is critical for all military
torces, to include those capturing unlawful enemy combatants in
Afghanistan., Ground commanders in support of Operation Enduring
Freedom {(OEF} in Afghanistan employ a FIND, FIX, FINISH, EXPLOIT,
and ANALYZE (F3EA) process to target the leadership, supporters and
key nodes of terrorist networks. The F3EA process 1s driven by
intelligence products of all types,.to include Intelligence
Information Reports (IIRs), Telegraph Disseminatlions (TD}s, FBI
302s, FM 405 and Summary Interrogation Reports (SIRs). Commanders
use multi-source and corroborated intelligence products to provide
the clearest possible picture of the operational envircnment. This
is critical in the fight against a highly compartmentalized, savvy
and network-based enemy. In this fight we must be able to rapidly
identify members of the network to disrupt and defeat their
operations. Critically, we must then exploit the final results of
that operation to lead us to the next individual inside the network
before the network can react and adjust its foxrm to become invisible
again. The following explains how intelligence is used throughout
this continuous cycle to drive operatlons and ensure we are removing

the enemy from the battlefleld with the highest degree of accuracy
possible.

Clagslfied By: MG Scaparolll, USCENTCOM .3
Reason: 1.4 (a)
Declassify On: 22 Aug 2018

—BWFORN-
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4. (U//|J}) Unlawful Enemy Combatant Status Determinations.
intelligence products developed and validated during the FBEA
process form the foundation upon which commahders make

3
—SECRETINOFORN—
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determinations of the actual involvement of a target individual in
the enemy network and therefore ultimately lead to targeting
decisions. Intelligence products and physical evidence from the
objective are useful tools with which to determine a detainee’s
status as an unlawful enemy combatant, and, when subjected to
thorough review and analysis by the commanders making the actual

determination, generally form the factual basis for that legal .
determination.

5. (U//-) Intelligence and information produced through this
F3EA process are alsc fed into the broader intelligence analytical
cycle, which combines this data with existing information and
intelligence to further task out for additional intelligence
operations. The information or intelligence derived from both the
analytical cycle and the operational cycle (F3EA) are disseminated
to higher, adjacent and subordinate commanders through existing
intelligence systems architecture to assist in developing targets
and driving operations.

6. (U//-) Conclusion. The process described above illustrates
the ideal with no resource constraints placed upon the process. The
practical realities of the battle field often constrain the time and
regources available to execute the F3EA cycle; however, the same
principles can be applied even with very limited assets to develop
the same effect. Additionally, the sensitivity of the target may
also drastically reduce the decision making cycle. The F3EA process
will never generate a 100% sclution; however, the guality and
veracity of the intelligence products remain the cornerstone of the
ground commander’s decision making process and the key to its
success.

Signed this 22™ of August, 2008

ROBEKT % . HOLMES

Brig Gen, USAF
Deputy Director of Operations
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

" MASHUR ABDULLAH AL-SABR,

Pelitioner,

v, Civil Action No, 06-CV-1767 (RMU)

GEORGE WALKER BUSH et al,,

Respondents.
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Defense Intelligence Agency

¥ Backgrowund Declaration —Guesthouses

Joint Iintelligence Task Foree — Combuting Terrorism

S-643-0B/1T1-3A 19 September 2008

{U) The Défonse Tntetligence Agenicy produced the following doctimont for the
Departnient of Defense Qffice of the Gineral Connsel o wiilize in fedeval court
Htigutiom,

(U 1, R o o028 1U,S.C. § 1746, hereby declare usder penalty of
petjury that the following is toe and correct 1o the best of my knowledge, infornsation,
and belisf.

()

{1 Afghanisten/Pakistan Guesthouses
__ |

 (Uy Al-Ansar Guesthouse

{U)) Al-Ansar was & name assigned (o rmdtiple suspicious gusathouses in Kabul,
Afghanistan; Kandahar, Afghanistan; and Peshawat, Pakiston. However, the majority of
peferences o e al-Anser guesthouses deseribe guesthouses in Kabul and Kandabar,

Dertrnd frome Muliphe Sources.
Dreelauxify on' Manont Reoviess
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(1) Al-Nebras Guesthsuge
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(U Afgbanistan: Proceszing Procedures at Al-Qaida Guesthouses

(15 Conclusion
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I have read thiy declaration and concur with the findings and conclusion.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

MASHUR ABDULLAH AL-SABRI,

Petitioner,

v. . Civil Action No. 06-CV-1767 (RMU)

- GEORGE WALKER BUSH et al,,

- Respondents.

N N N S A

Declaration of e
On Training Camps -
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Defense Intelligence Agency

Background Declaraiton ~ Terrorist Training Camps

Jolnt Intedligenee Tusk Fores ~ Combating Terroriam

' 19 Septomber 2008

(I)) The Qeﬁma ntelligence Agoncy produced the following document for the Depariment vf
Defense Office of the Generdd Counisel to nitlize In federal court ltigailon,

{U} i, — purssant to 28 US.C. § 1746 hereby deelare under penalty of perury that
the following is tene and eorrect 0 the best of my knewledge, information, and belief,

{U) Afghan Training Camps: 1989 « 2001

(X1} Overview;

(_cf)é:emp-.ﬂrmmm

Drrivod from: Multile Suwes .

Durhmglyon: Subjors in posty brintyrtsionsd ogreement

m— e B
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'

() Al-Qalda Camps

) Al-Farsq Training Canps '

* i

R —
e ——

»
L]
& T
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(1) According o The 911 Cornniission Report at Ieast seven of the 9/11 hijackers who provided
"miuscle” for the nttacks went through a basic training regime at the al-Faruq camp, and one of
the pitots, Hani Hanjour, was identified for inclusion in the plot while training at al-Farug, The
Cammission canctuded this particular camp sppears to have boen the preferred location for
verting and fralning the potential moscle hijackers because of its proximity to Usama Bin Ladin
sngd other al-Qaida senior leaders.

fU‘) Mes Aynuk

(U) Farngk Farms aka Abn Obelda Traming Camp
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(0) Comips Titilized by sl-Qaids and Others

{U) Derunta Training Camp Compiexes

(U} The Derunta training complex, located 15 miles from Jalalabad, Afghanistan, was a set.of
advanced terrorist iraining camps offering tralning in variows explosives, poisons, and chemical
warfare agents. Coalition forces destroyed the comp in October 2001,

‘ —
.—

{U} Perunta; Cupriciiom

| |
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‘ﬁ
*
i
!

(!3} Derunta: Stndents of Abu Khigbab abfMasrl

_
I
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II ' ..

. {1 Sada Training Cwomp
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{4 Khaldan Camp
-1 ]
{13 While the Khaldan eamp was riod an al-Qaida <I‘Iwilit3ﬂ Abu Zubaydeh hesd nn agreement with

bin Lodin to condner reciprodal recruiting efforts whaereby promising-trainies at the Khaldan
camyp that they could join al-Quids If desired,

e e bbep me m e e A e rw A mmemaEt Kapl yvi ew ws s Sre BEr bfesstade L grig aeamecs
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(I} Abu Yahya Camp for the Libyan Istamic Figliting Group
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMRBIA

MASHUR ABDULLAH AL-SABRI,

Petitioner,

v. Civil Action No. 06-CV-1767 (RMU)

GRORGE WALKER BUSH et a],,

Respondents.

Ml S Nt D Sl Ve S S N

- ISN 324 FD-302 (Feb. 21, 2002) .
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FD-302 (Rev. 10-6-05)
“1-
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

‘This docnment contains neither recommendations nor conclisions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned
to your agency; it and its contents are not fo be distributed outside yaur agency.

Date of transcription

02/21/2002

Mashour aAbdullah Mugbil Ahmed Al-8Sabri (Al-Sabri) aka Abu
Abdullah, Xslamic calender date of birth fourth (4th} month, fifteenth
(15th} day of 1370 (approximately 1976), place of birth Mecca, Saudi
Arabia was interviewed at the United States Temporary Holding Facility .

at Qandahar Afrport, Qandahar, Afghanistan. Present at the interview
were Special Agent's d (New York office) and I
i (Los Angeles Office), United States Army Criminal Investigation
-Division (CID)} Special Agent and United States Army 202nd
Military Intelligence Battalion Specialist [N vho
interpreted the interview which was conducted in Arabic. All namesg and
locations provided by Al-Sabri are phonetic. Upon being advised of the
identity of the interviewing agents and the nature of the interview,
he provided the following information:

approximately 45 and mother age :

approximately 40. Both parents were born in Taiz, Yemen. Al-Sabri's
father has a second wife age 30. Al-Sabrl resided
in Mabdah, Saudi Arabia with his family from birth until August, 1990.

The residence was located near the Quala Al-Yemani coffee shop. The

town was very small and vigitors would meet at this coffee shop. The
family currently resides at _

i, Saudi Arabia, telephone number - Both Al-Sabri's mother
and- step-mother are housewives. Al-Sabri's father owns an Arabic food
restaurant, |GG - oo

was a silent, Arabic partner (NFI) who officially sponsors the
restaurant since Al-Sabri's father was Yemeni.

Al-Sabri has three bhrotherg and two sigterg all born in Mecca,
Saudi Arabia;

attended the Al-Hudabiya High School,
Gasala District, currently attends the Rousalyfa Middle School

in Mecca. Sisters; M age 16 and I age 11 attend public school
numbers 21 and 22 in the Al-Azaziya District of Mecca. ‘

Al-Sabri attended the Hara Elementary School in Mabdah, Saudi i
Arabia located behind the Quala Al-Yemani coffee house. He then attended :
the ITbn Kathir Secondary School in Gasala District, Mecca for

approximately one (1) year before being expelled for smoking on school

02/20/02 ' Qandahar, Afghanistan

_
54 !
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property. His father tried to get Al-Sabri .re-registered to
no avail. He then attended the Al-Jazeera Middle School on Al-Azaziva
" Street, Mecca. Al-Sabri attended the Al-Hudabiva High School until
dropping out in the ninth (9th) grade. He returned to take night clagses
for twenty days but again dropped out for lack of interest.

After dropping out of schocl, Al-Sabri stayed home for
+ _approximately eight (8) months working odd jobs including driving a

taxiin town WHile WOrking he ‘Became friends withh 24 Vear old- -
S Bl ' s brother [ EENEGEGEGNGEEERN. cvned a white, fifteen
{15) passenger M:Ltsub:l.sha. bus. Al-Sabri and Said approached IR
to form a partnership to operate the bus. For one month, Al-Sabxi and
would use the bus to transport people for the Haj pllgrlmage Fifty
(50) percent of the profit would go to NN 3 the remalnder aplit
between Al-Sabri and

. Al- Sabrzl. began u51ng the family vehicle as a taxi around town.
Al-Sabri became more religious and began attending the Majid Al-Ibtisham
mosque (translated to mean the smiling mosque) . He attended the mosque
for six wmonths in 1998 and gradually stopped attending.

_ Al-Sabri met an individual named through
BN cive (5) months ago. was a 28 year old Saudi
residing on Street 60 in Mecca. had come to Al-Sabri's

residence to stay for a couple of days. Al-Sabri had not known that
.was wanted by the Sdudi authorities for passport forgery.
A friend of NFI, stopped by the residence to drop
off s passport and money. Al-Sabri believed that JEEER
alerted the authorities that* was staying at Al-Sabri's
residence. left the following morning.

In the winter of 1988, the Saudi authorities came to
Al-Sabri's residence to arrest_ on pagsport forgery charges:
B h-d worked with an unknown facilitator to produce passports.
Al-Sabri was arrested for harboring a fugitive # Al-Sabri
c¢laimed that he did not receive any money or goods for allowing
to astay.

Al-Sabri was held for one and one-half months in the Ministry
of the Interior (MOI} Mecca Mubahth Prison. There were no trials or

convictions, rather a deportation proceeding with a Live (5) year Saudi
Arabia ban decision by the MOI. Al-Sabri was transporited te the Jeddah
_ Mubahth Prison and then deported by plane to Sanaa, Yewmen.

While on the plane, Al-Sabri befrlended two twenty (20) year
o0ld Yemeni brothers, _ I . 211 three
stayed in the Hotel Al-Salem in the Bab Al-Yemen Dlstrlct Sanaa.

Al-Sabri used his Yemeni passport which he received from ths Yemen
Consulate in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia as identification. The three stayed
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one night and the two brothers contacted an uncle in the
Tehnsion neighborhood in Sanaa. Al-Sabri stayed for two days and left
for Taiz, Yemen.

Al-Sapri called his family from Sanaa and was told of anuncle,
who resided near Taiz in a small area
called Jabil Sabar (meaning Mountain of Sabar}. He paid $600 Yemeni
_ for a taxi to transport him to Taiz. He stayed two weeks looking for
—_—— work-and-decided-to move-to-another relatives-house since-the_current
living conditions were crowded. Al-Sabri moved to a nearby residence
owned by cousin,

Al-Sabri met a Yemeni named [N BB =<
25 in Taiz.Jlll had previously traveled to Afghanistan for military
training and to fight for the Taliban. Al-Sabri became interested in
this discussion and inquired about receiving military training. Among
other topice discussed was the local honey trading business. would

. purchase honey f£rom a twenty-two ({22) year old Yemeni wholesaler, |l
. purchased honey from neighboring towns and return
to Taiz. would purchase honey and distribute to area merchants.

convinced Al-Sabri that he could make money selling honey in Taiz.

In the spring of 19929, Al-Sabri moved to Taiz and rented a
one floor house in the Sina District of Talz. Al-Sabri paid his rent
by obtaining hig %7,000 riyval life sawvings from his family through a
wire money transfer company called ﬂ This company is a large-
money transfer business in the Middle East. Al-Sabri had to sign a
receipt form for the sent money. Al-Sabri began purchasing honey from
ﬁ and trying to sell out of his rented house. He tried selling
honey for approximately six months but became dissatisfied, and decided
to try to return home to Saudi Arabia.

Al-Sabri left Taiz to Sanaa, attempting to obtain a visa to
return home. His father in Saudi Arabia tried to assist with Al-Sabri's
return home by visiting the Jeddah, Saudi Arabia Consulate. Al-Sabri
traveled to the Saudi Arabia Consulate in Sanaa. Al-Sabri was not able
to obtain a visa immediately and his father told him to stay with a
family friend in Sanza, RSN WM - dod in the
Gat Al-Yahoud District (named as the place for Jews) . Al-Sabri contacted

who told Al-Sabri to stay with. -his sister's forty (40) year
old husband, . 21-sabri stayed for ten (10) days. Daily,
Al -Sabri-weuld-go-to -the-SaudiConsulate-to obtain-a wiga but-was-told
he needed blood work and to come back at a later time.

The residence ig located on [l in the Habra District,
Sanaa. The following eight {(8) individuals, aged approximately 25 years,
resided at this address;
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Two—indivi-duals—came—to—dgitthe residents—at-the house-on———

the gixth day.

Il had been staying at a hotel in Sanaa. Al-sabri provided the
follow:l.ng degcription of

Nationality: Yemeni

Sex: Male

Age: ' 23

Height: _ 610"

Build: Heavy

Hair: ) ©  Bhort, light brown, moustache
Eyes: Brown _ .
Complexion: Medium, Buropean

Al-Sabri provided the following. descr:l..ptlon of NG -

Nat J.onallty Yemen:.

Sex: . Male

Age: 23

Height: Srign

Build: . Medium

Hair: - Short black, bearded
Eyes: . ' Brown

. Four days after the two vigited, 8

anaa police raided the
house and arrested Al-Sabri and the residents. * |

and a third individual name were arrested at the Sanaa
hotel. There were three others arrested in front of residence

in a iarked vehicle, aka and

!

Al -8abri and the other arrested individuals were transported
to—the-Sanaa—Rahahth-Prigon.-Al-Sabri believed-that— i_—a—nd
I 2 been surveilled to the house. For nine (9) months, Al-Sabri
and the others were incarcerated without criminal charges. He was
released with everyone else except for four individuals.

Al-Sabri learned that | I v-s in charge of an
T

auto theft ring. would arrange to rent vehicles from an

auto rental business in Sanaa. He was caught with two (2} stolen Jeeps
D - - I -

upon arrest.

I
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. all drivers who rented wvehicles using their passports for .
deposit., Al-Sabri did not know if the identifications used were
fraudulent.

There were several motives provided by Al-Sabri as to why
the auto theft ring existed. d and the drivers would steal

the-vehicleg-and-drive—them-to-aloeation—in-Sada—¥Yemen next-to-the————
Saudi Arabian border., The vehicles would be scld in Saudi Arabia and
the proceeds used to purchase weaponsg. The goal wasg to violently free
_ from a Sanaa prison.iad been convicted
of murdering four (4) German tourists. had kidnaped the

. tourists to bargain with the Yemeni Government to release an imprisoned
.sheik associated with the South Yemen group, {Army of

Aden) . The Yemen Government refused to negotiate .resulting in
IR -5 cubscouantly

killing the tourists.
imprisoned and later executed.

Other plansg included kidnaping other touriszsts using the
stolen vehicles. The four individuals would themselves attempt to
negotiate the release of| . 21-5abri denied having knowledge
of the auto theft ring or the plans involved to freei. The
plans were learned while he was imprisoned for nine (9) wmonths. The
Bahahth General holding facility, Sanaa Central Prison and the Political
Security Service detention facilities. Al-Sabri was released in
December, 1999 without being convicted of any crime. He had obtained
a Yemeni federal identification card and returned to stay at

's Sanaa residence.

Al-Sabri continued to visit the Saudi Arabian Consulate in
hopes of receiving a visa to go home. He would attend [IINGEGEGEG' -
court appearances while in Sanaa. Al-S8abri had a cellular teiephone
through TelYemen subsciiber number In January, 2000, he had
convinced a security ofificer to allow to use his cellular phone
to call N : residence in Saudi Arabia, f£rom the Sanaa General
Prison. Al-Sabri was arrested for suspicion of providing the telephone
for M to further terrorist operations. Al-Sabri denied these
allegations and stated the Yemen Govermment later verified that the
call was made to ‘s Saudi Avabian residence. He remained

incarcerated-for—three—(3}—days-

Al-Sabri had his Yemeni identification card, cellular phone
and several telephone numbers for . Al-8abri denied
having any other telephone numbers in his possession upon arrest.
Al-Sabri left Sanaa for Tailz for five days staying with his uncle,

. Al-Sabri decided to return to Sanaa again trying to
obtain a Saudi visa. Al-Sabri returned to Sanaa and stayed at
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Al-Shadadi's residence for one week. Al-Sabri recelved his
Saudi wvisa and planned to leave for Saudi Arabia,

In January, 2000 Al-Sabri took a publ:l.c bus to the Saidi Arabia
border but was denied due to the five (5) year ban. He took a taxi from
the border to a hotel NFI in Hudada, Yemen for one night. Al-Sabri
returned to Taiz and stayed with his uncle. Al-Sabri contacted his friend
and

to leave. Al-Sabri had $1000 US dollars and 5,000 Riyals,

Al-gabri left Sanaa in the late summer/fall of 2000. He flew
Gulf Air with layovers in the United Arab Emirates (UAE) and Bahrain.

-Al-Sabri arrived in Karachi, Pakistan within a day of leaving Sanaa.

The entire flight cost was approximately 67,000 Yemeni dollars. From
Karachi, Al-Sabri took a Pakistan Alx flight to Quetta, Pakistan and
stayved at a Taliban guesthouse called the Daftar Al-Talibarn. Jtcld
him to gtay at this guesthouse. The manager of the house was an Afghani
NFI. Al-Sabri stayed three (3) days at this guesthouse.

Al-Sabri took a taxl to the border town of Boldak whereuﬁon .

he crogsed the border on foot. Three (3) other individuals;

B 50 and I o stayed at the guesthouse, traveled across
the border with Al-Sabri. Al-Sabri provided the follow1ng descrlptlon
of :

Nationality:. Yemeni

Sex: Male

Age: : 19

Heilght: 5r10n

Build: Medium

Hair: . Black, short length, thin beard
Byes: Brown

Complexion: o Medium

Other: Facial acne

Al-gabri provided the following description of | LNU:

convinced him to travel to Afghanistan for a better .
Fife-and—E£ind.-a—wife—Al~ Sabr—l—d-l-d—not--terl-l—anyene—tahai;—he—lnbendedg*

Naticnality: . Yemeni

Sex: Male

Age- : 23

Height: 5110

Build: Small

Hair: _Black, medium -length, beard
Eyes: Brown

Complexion: Medium

Al-Sabri provided the following description of I :
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Nationality: Saudi

gex;: Male

Age: 21

Height: 5r100

Build: Medium

Hair: Black, goatee

Byes: Brown

Complexion: Medium
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Date of transcription ) )
' 05/24/2002 °

MASHOUR ABDULLAH MUigBIL AHMED AL~SABRI, Isn# NENE-o0324,

was interviewed at U.8. Naval Station Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

L—

Naval Criminal Investigative Service (NCIS) and Detective r
New York Police Department (NYPD)/Joint Terrorism Task Force. Present
during the 05/10/02 interview was SA Il and sa ,
FBI. Present during the 05/22/02 interview was SA and DET
{NYPD/FBI Joint Terrorism Task Force. 8PC

translated the 05/01/02, 05/04/02 and 05/10/02 interviews into

English from Arabic. TSGT NG r-nslated the 05/22/02 °

interview into English from Arabic,

AL-SABRI was born in Mecca, Saudi Arabia (SA) on the 1398
4*® month/15"® day. He speaks Arabic only and claims citizenship in
Yemen. AL-SABRI attended six years in elementary school and three years
at AL JEZRAH Middle School in Mecca, SA, He went to high schoel at night
quitting before completing the first class. He quit because he was the
youngest in the class and did not like to attend with older people.

His grades cut of middle school were so poor that he was not able to -

get into standard high school so night classes were his only option.
After high school he worked very little operating a taxi service on
a part time basis. )

AL-SABRI advised he was incarcerated in Saudi Arabia during
the latter part of 1998 for harboring a fugitive. As history, in the
Summer of 1998, approximately three to four months prior to his arrest,
AL-SABRT met through d, a friend he'd met
two years previously playing soccer in a local league. AL-SABRTI and
ﬂ had social contact approximately two to three times weekly in
the six months to a year prior to his arrest. |JHIEEl lives on ABDULLAH
AL KHIYAT STREET in the AL AZAZIA neighborhood, Medina Mecca. When they
met, was in Saudi Arabia to participate in a mini-Hajj. They
spoke for ten minutes at [ s house and did not communicate or
meet again until AL-SABRI moved to Yemen in late 1998.

's brothers are {(age 35), ﬂ (age
33), (age 30), M (age 29), (age 27), {age
25), and (age 25)

05/01-22/02 Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

| 05/01-22/02
o CECRE oy Dl .
SA (FBI} DET (NYPD)
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At the end of 1997, approximately one yeax prior to hils arrest,
AL-SABRI also met i (AKA: }, another friend of
B is a Saudi male, approximately 25 years old, 6 feet
and of medium build. They met at the Holy Mosque in Mecca on four or
five occasions and once at 's house. AL~SABRI did not know how
lon and had known one another. In the Summer of 1898,
came to Al-SABRI's house unannounced and asked to wait there

for his brother, stayed for approximately one
hour and had tea with AL-SABRI. They spoke mostly of buying and selling

datesy Ls-eccupaktion— ~arrived-—with-twe-friends—
both SAUDI males in their mid-twenties who appeared to be under the
influence of narcotics. AL-SABRI gave them privacy by leaving the room
although he was still able to see the two brothers. He observed

give his brother what looked like a Saudi assport and what
i did tell-AL-SABRI he

later confirmed was 3000 Saudi riyals.
needed the passport to leave Saudi Arabia but AL-SABRI maintained he
ﬁ was in ay trouble.

did-not know
AL-SABRI never saw or heard from [N z2¢2in.

came back six months later, days before AL-SABRI's arrest,
and asked if he had seen or heard from h further adding vaguely

that had a problem with the government. AL-SABRI advised he did
not know 's whereabouts butg_ suspected he did
and threatened to. tell the Saudi authorities that. Within days, the
Saudi authorities arrested AL-~SABRI, at his home, for harboring a

fugitive (NG -~ searched his residence subsequently
incarcerating him for one and a half months before deporting him to
Yemen. AL-SABRI said he learned later that AL- was involved in

falsifying passports. This arrest took place approximately one year
after he quit hlgh school.

BL-SABRI was remanded to Yemen, his country of citizenship..
He flew to Sa'na and ended up staying in a hotel called THE DOOR OF
PEACE (BAB AL SALAM) HOTEL for two days with two men he met at the airport
prior to boarding his plane. The men, and were
brothers or cousins who were the same age as AL-SABRI. They were also
being deported after having been convicted in Yemen for stealing. They
had just been released after spending two years in jail. They went
to breakfast together near the butcher shop of their uncle whose name
AL-SABRI cannot recall, in the neighborhood called TELEVIZION. He never
saw them again after he left their company that day. AL-SABRI brough

200 1 |

200—rival—witth—him—{tappreximatelyv—5$50+00}—and—obtained a new—Yemend
passport when he first arrived in Sa'na.

. The following day he called his brother, |IHIll. in Mecca and
asked him to contact Mrequest' I = tclcphone number.
AL-SABRI said he did have 's telephone number but did not want
" to call him directly and would not give a reason why. [N did provide .
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AL-SABRI had been arrested and so B cid not want his name _
assoclated with AL-SABRI. AL-SABRI does not know whether | IEINGEN vas
ever arrested.

. AL-SABRI then contacted B -ncd net with him the same
day. They met at the SALA BUILDING in the neighborhood of TELEVIZION
and went to a restaurant called THE GUEST (AL DIAFA) located nearby

for-lTunch:They spent-oneand-a-half-hours—at-Junch-tatking mostly-about

why AL-SABRI was deported. Afterwards, |l cropped AL-SABRI off
at the taxl station. From there he tock a taxi by himself to TAIZ.

AL-SABRI stayed in Talz for a period of two weeks. He lived
for two weeks between the homes of his paternal uncle, | IIIININGEBETE
AL-SABRI and his maternal uncle, h Both uncles lived
in the Seena neighborhood, Seena Street, Medina Taiz. AL-SABRI worked
very little in Saudi Arabia but did starxt his own business trading hone
after moving to Yemen. He was given the idea by a man named ﬂ
Bl. = Saudi, whom he'd met at the ALKHAIR Mosque in Taiz diring his
first couple weeks in Yemen. |l had military training and did Ffight
in Afghanistan. Prior to starting the business AL-SABRI had his brother
wire him 7000 riyals. He sold honey for five or six months and then
he went back to Sama to try and get a Saudi visa to return home.

AL-SABRI never traveled outside of Saudi Arabia prior to his
deportation to Yemen.

AL~SABRI applied with the Saudi Embassy for a visa but was
told he would have to walt as they needed paper to prove he was of Saudi
descent. During this walting period he lived in a house owned but not’

occupied by 's sister and brother in law, |HIIIININIGE.
-h facilitated the living arrangements. Each man paid 2000

riyals per month, There were five bedrooms shared between them. The
following individuals lived there:

I - -oneni. AL-SABRI came to know him best as they shared
a room and spent the majority of their time together.

-~ Yemeni. AL-SABRI said NN :rained in

—Afghanistan:
[ :
I 2 s28RI said he first met| ] in 1995 at a

soccer game in Mecca. | ):ived in Medina at the time but was
playing soccer on a traveling team. They became friends after playing

against one another in one soccer game and kept in contact-via monthly
telephone contact and one in person visit in Medina. AL-SABRI ran into
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day and, as a result, did not end up getting ma'rried. AL-SARRI saw
twice after they were released from jail.

“ - AL~-SABRI saidEM - s two brothers, R
AND . was killed in Afghanistan.| NN trzined in

- —the~KHALDEN Camp—near Jalalabad

(AKA

- AL-SABRI saidliE :r2incd

in Afghanistan. came and went a lot during the day when they
lived together. and spent the most time together

prior to their arrests and were constantly together in jail. While in
jail, spent the time when he was not withh either
reading the Qu'ran or writing. :

ﬁ - Yemeni. This living arrangement was
facilitated by . AL-SABRI socialized with h the most.
I sccned to know everyone in the house well. He was in Yemen

writing his marriage contract. He left but returned two days before
the arrest. ﬁ ancjJ M =1:0 spent time together.

~ Al1-SABRI said BB spoke English which he
learned when he lived in England. In England he lived with a Saudi
named . I trained in Afghanistan, seemed
to know everyone in the house well and was in Yemen writing his marriage
contract. He left the house two days before the arrest. AL-SABRI dad
not know where he was in that two day period.

In May 1999, AL-SABRI was arrested when the house he was 1iving
in was ralded by Yemeni law enforcement. AL-SABRI explained that three
individuals who were visiting the house, JIE and _ and
were involved in a car theft ring and this is what
led to the raid and AL-SABRI's subsequent arrest. After being held
for nine months, AL-SABRI was released without ever having made a court

appearance. After his release from jail he returned to his paternal
uncle, AL-SABRI’s, residence in Taiz. He stayed there

for one week before returninvgtohisfriend] s—parents—residence
in Sana. was released from jail the day after AL-S3ABRI’s release.
AL-SABRI socialized at 's house several times a week after his

arrest. AL-SABRI confirmed having met
i's brother in law. -

( ) ¢
AL-SABRI advised that during this time he decided that there
was not much opportunity for him in Yemen. During the Summer of 1998,
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During this time frame he learned about weaponry from his

paternal uncle, AL-SABRI. He was taught to fire and
AK-47 and a pistol.

I (c1cd AL-SABRI that he should move to

Afghanistan as work was easier to find there. In addition, AL-SABRI

was influenced by a Fatwa issued by nationally recognized religious
scholars, of Quaseem, Saudi Arabia, and Sheik h
, both Saudis. The Fatwa was encouraging men to go to

Afghanistan to assist the Taliban. is a member of the Fatwa
Committee in Saudi Arabia. Additionally, told him that the Taliban
would assist him in getting from Pakistan -into Afghanistan because he
was Arabic. In the summer of 2000, AL-SABRI decided to trawvel to

Afghanistan with AL-SABRI purchased a round-trip ticket
on Tunisian Air and flew from Sa’'ma Yemen, through the United Arab

Emirates, Bahrain and landing in Quetta, Pakistan. Once in Quetta,
AL-SARRT went by taxi to The Taliban Qffices as advised by JJll. He

waited for two days in the Taliban offices before leaving to cross the
border.

AL-SARRI, I and another individual, [N vcrc
driven to the border at Boldak, Pakistan in a Toyota Corolla taxi., AL-SABRI
paid for the trip but could not recall how much. Once they reached the border
at Boldak he, h, and were picked up by motorcycles and taken
acrcsgs the border where they re-met the taxi. They stopped at a restaurant
in the middle of the village of Boldak shortly thereafter. From there another
driver tock them to Kandahar, Afghanistan to an arab guest house called the
HABI HABASH HOUSE, where he stayed for two weeks. h, a Yemeni,

was 1n charge of the house. While at the house AL-SABRI would go, on a daily
basis, to an Islamic Institute across the street.

AL-SABRI told | that he wanted to go Jalalabad,

Afghanistan but was advised to wait until someone else from the house went.
h, a Moroccan, ended up accompanying him to Jalalabad via Kabul.:
He stayed in Kabul for twe days- in an "Rrab house”. The house was run by
Ta-SaudiThehousewas a white two story-home—surrounded—
by a wall. He dld not get to know anyone in the guesthouse. From Kabul
AL-SABRI traveled to Jalalabad where he stayed at the

guest-house for the next year. While at the guest-house AL-SABRI traveled
to the frontline near Kabul. AL-SABRI acknowledged there was fighting ¢going
on there. AL-SABRI advised that it is common knowledge if you are an Arab
in Afghanistan the Afghans will steal from you so AL-SABRI was always armed,
He purchased a Russian Makrof sawed off pistol from d while
in Jalalabkad two to three months prior to the September 11, 2001, attacks




Case 1:06-cv-01767-UNA Document 178-1 Filed 07/29/09 Page 103 of 249

FD-302Rgu 089 the United States. MM is 2 Tunisian in his 30s, approximately
Continualioh pfFB-4020h 4 very thin. He manages a mudafa in Jalalabad that is located next
Page door to the Red Cross office. g_'s sister in law introduced AL-SABRI
to a young Moroccan woman for the purposes of marriage. AL-SABRI advised

MOUSHOUR AL-SABRI .+ 05/19/02 6

he did not get' married because of the chaos that followed 9/11
and his subsequent arrest. :

AL-SABRI first heard about the attacks against the United States
on the radio in Jalalabad. He left Jalalabad after Kabul fell and went to
a village whose name he cannot recall but where he stayed for about twent
five days. He then started to Peshawar, Pakistan with two other Arabs, i

and I -rc an Afghani guide. The guide advised them that we
would likely be arrested at the border and suggested that they turn themselves
in. They did s¢0 two days before Ramadan. :

AL-SABRI was shown the I photobook and identified the
following individuals as: '

No. Jl: (aka N - camc to visit [N

in jail once.
AKA
's house once. was with him.
's sister. told AL-sABRRI JIM

was responsible for collecting money in Yemen® :

I3




Case 1:06-cv-01767-UNA Document 178-1_ Filed 07/29/09 Page 104 of 249

FD-3024)
Continuation of kL-.
On
, Page

e ——————
N
-

MOUSHOUR AL-SABRI 05/12/02 7




Case 1:06-cv-01767-UNA Document 178-1 Filed 07/29/09 Page 105 of 249

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
. -FOR THE DISTRICT OR COLUMBLA .. . .

MASHUR ABDULLAH AL-SABRL,

Petitioner,

CiviFAction-No-06-CV-1767-(RMLD

7.
GEORGE WALKER BUSH et al,,

Respondents,

Mt S N N M A, e S S S

ISN 324 FD-302 (July 17; 2002)

e




—— (rBI), s» I (NCIS).,. TS

Case 1:06-cv-01767-UNA Document,178-1 Filed 07/29/09 Page 106 of 249

FD-302 (Rev. 10-6-95)
-1-
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is (ke properly of the FBI and is loaned to your
agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outsider your agency.

Date of transcription

07/17/2002

on 07/8/2002 and 07/09/2002, MASHUR H MUOBTL AHMED
AL SABRI, ISN o o324]l. was interrogated at Guantanamo
Bay, Cuba. The interviews were conducted bi Sﬁecial Agent

_{US_Army)_ _and other
repregentatives of the US Government. On 07/11/2002 and 07/13/2002,
AL SABRI was interviewed by Special Agent | INIEIGNGgGGEGEE (rz:1) and TS

B (Us 2ruwy). On 07/17/2002, AL SABRI was interviewed
by Special Agent * (FBI) and T&
(US Air Force). On 08/02/2002, AL SABRI was interviewed by SA

, and , FBI and other representatives of the U.S.
Government. AL SABRI provided the following information:

SAUDI ARABIA

The following information related to Saudi Arabia is a summar
of previous interrogation sessions with AL SABRI: In 1997, i
introduced AL SABRY to | v o had been involved in fraudulent
passports. N 21so introduced AL SARRI to HNEEE. 1o 1998,
AL SARRI went to jail because of his involvement with these individuals.
Because he was a Yemenli citizen, he was gent back to Yemen., AL SABRT
attempted to return to Saudi Arabia, but could not cbtain a visa, even
with the help of his father.

YEMEN

While living .in Yemen, AL SABRI lived in a house owned b
'g family with 15 other individuals.

Although AL SABRI claims to not have known it
at the time, several of the men living in the housge were involved in

an auto theft ring. The chief suspects or ring leaders of the auto
A - B, -~ I

theft ring were _
were identified as such becauge they actually stole

B e
. Were

the_carsg.—
identified as the drivers. The original plan was to steal vehicles
in Yemen and smuggle them across the border into Saudi Arabia. AL SABRI
did not believe that they ever were given the opportunity to execute
this plan. AL SABRI believes that they were under surveillance by the
police and stated that when the police raided the house where they were

0r/17/2002 Guantanamo Bay, Cuba
| 07/17/2002
sa
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all living, he (AL SABRI) was in the wrong place at the wrong
. time. They were arrested in May, 1999.

While in jail, the four chief suspects were held in solitary
confinement for 20-22 days. It was not until came ocut of
solitary that AL SABRI learned about the theft ring.
aka , was kept in lsclation because he was
-It--was -during-this time-in-prisen-that AL-SABRI -met
for the Ffirst time. AL SABRI described the jall as

!

The inmateg were free to communicate with each other. He remembered

" that was alzo in jail with them. AL SABRI was at the opposite
and |HIEENE. 21 S2BRI stated
often communicated with each other in
rison and hardly ever gpoke to AL SAERI. JHNEGEGE =rd
h were always together and appeared to be very close. AL SABRI

degcribed I 25 serious, quiet and a loner whom he did not have
any personal conversations with.

I - :cd about getting married in Sana'a and leaving
Yemen. He was going to ask his father for money and buy a house in
Saudi Axabia. After being released. Al SABRI obserw.at the
house where they all stayed previgously . (owned by family).

was looking for (NNl but instead spoke with his brothers
since he was not home at the time.

AT, SABRI never had visitors while in prison. 15
vigited b — and this 1s where AL SABRI first met
ﬁwas engaged to 's daughter. AL SABRI did not recognize
the photo of ; and denied seeing him at
the priscn.

AL SABRI was asked to identify his friends to which he stated

v and . 2L SABRT identified the photograph
of which was located W dated
02/2002. AL SABRT stated that did not live at the house with
the rest of them but was always in the company of —

AL SABRI also noted that two photographs were missing £rom the FBI

bulletin, one was because he was dead, and the other was
—aka-

a courtyard facility with dormitory housing and approximately .60 inmates.

In January 2000, after nine monthe of incarceration, AL S8ABRI,
[ JEN! i were released from i ail due to lack of evidence.

AL SABRI maintained a friendship with { ). The
returned to the house where they were previously living and
worked on his marriage contract. Approximately 4-7 days after beini

released, R -rvicd JIll = daughter. AL SABRT and
attended the wedding which was described as a single ceremony. AL SABRI
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knew that all of ' s daughters married Saudi citizens.
and learned from prior to the wedding that one of them would
not be attending the wedding ceremony. He wasg identified only as
and apparently was in Afghanistan.

AL SABRI denied knowing anything about the planning for the
attack on the USS Cole. He never overheard conversations regarding
same nor was he tasked with any operatlon or intelligence gathering

—function—for—the—attack: - -

AL SABRI had no knowledge of plans to rig these stolen vehicles
with explozives for terrorist acts. He believed that the plan was to
steal the cars, sell them to buy weapons and kidnap Eurcpean and/or
American tourists for ransom money. Their intentions were to put
pressure on the Yemeni Goverament to release d
former head of the Yemeni Army who was implicated in the deaths of four ;
German citizens. :
AL SARRI identified photograph # {known to FBI as |IIIIR S

) as the brothex-in-law of . [Note: It is unclear
if was actually , the Pentagon highjacker,
who was married to one of 's daughters] .

AFGHANTISTAN

In August 2000, two months prior to the USS Cole attack, AL
S8ABRI left for Afghanistan, however, he stated that he actually began
thinking about going to Afghanistan about 1 2 vears earlier., AL SABRI
traveled with & to Afghanistan. was described as
approximately. 22-23 years 0ld. AL SABRT stated that he had no previous
contact with JJJlll prior to meeting him one week before they left for
Afghanistan and the only thing he knew about him was that he was from !
Taiz, Yemen. He told AL SABRI that he was going te Jihad. AL SABRI '
went to Afghanistan to find a wife and denied going to escape any

involvement with the planning of the USS Ccle.
* was the person who had the most influence
on AL SABRY going to Afghanistan, although he admitted that he was also

influenced by the fatwa issued by the sheikhs in Yemen. [l told
AL SABRI that there was security and peace in Afghanistan and that prior
to the Taliban taking control it was lawless. get a plan for

AL SABRI which AL SABRI recanted, saying that it was just a plan to
get—to- NN = .o us< e —
friends. AL SABRT later describe as his best friend as well,

when AL SABRI and ALl arrived in Qandahar, AL SABRI stayed
at the house for approximately two weeks. After four days,
AL SABRT met , & Yemenl recruiter who tried to convince him
to join Al Qaeda and further his training at Camp Al Farouq.
was described as 5'9", very thin and 28-30 years old. AL SABRT told
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interrogators that he was not convinced encugh and that he
had to stick to the plan or schedule that I set for him. AL SARRI

denied having ever gone to any type of training camp even when confronted

with evidence that he was seen at the Jihad Wall Camp in the company

of , _and other known terrorist subjects,.

AL SABRI told interrogators that while in Afghanistan he was
known as . He stated that the onl eople who knew his
realname—were— —_—a—ndffﬂ-:——-—I—n—a—sepa—rate

O U Uy Y

interrogation, AT, SABRI told interrogators that the only people that
knew him as w and NN Even NN
referred to him as .

After two weeks, AL SABRI traveled to Kabul with | I,
“a 5'3" Morroccan in his late 30's with muscular build, and stayed at
the Arab House for two days. This house was rTun by .
was described as being 6'0", heavy, very fat, older than

AL SABRI, a Saudi Naticnal who had been in Afghanistan for a long time,
AL SABRI attended the mosqgue next to the guesthouse for prayers but

never heard a sermon bi UBL. AL SABRI wanted to go to the front lines-

but was told by
he could not go.

- After two days, he and traveled to Jalélabad where
they stayed one night with a friend of (nfi) . The next day,
the wen drove AL SABRI to the house of . This was

I

approximately 09/2000. AL SABRI stated that everyone knew of

but he could not explain why he was so important except that he was
a well know Arab National. AL SABRI stayed in ts house for 12
months. and were very close. , @ Saudi citizen
who is approximately the same age as AL SABRI, lived there with his
wife, a Moroccan, h invitéd AL SABRT to stay in the guest bedroom
while in Afghanistan. No one elsge came to stay at this house while:
he was there. AL SABRI trusted exclugively due to the
recommendation of [l. AL SABRI described i as a brother and
best friend.

that since he did not have any weapons training

AL SABRI never communicated with [l while in Afghanistan, nor has

previous interviews where AL SABRI stated that he went to Afghanistan
to look for a wife. He never mentioned |l before.]

AL SABRI truste' so much that he gave his passport
to him for safe keeping. did not work during the time AL SABRI
lived with him. AL SABRI believed that |l inherited money from
hig family in Saudl Arabia. AL SABRI never met Usama Bin Laden and
believed that M never met Usama Bin Laden. AL SABRT never heard

‘ wife had a sister named who still resided -
in Morocco. arranged that AL SABRIY and would be married.

he-written—to—-her—gince hisarrival-in-Cuba+—{Note:—this—contradicts—
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UBL preach at a mosgue in Jalalabad. The only details AL
SABRI provided reiarding his 12 months in Jalalabad was that he went.

hunting with and went with him to different mosques to distribute.
money.

_ B :cceived money from his family to support his living ;
expenses and also received money from Saudi Arabia. This money was :
a collection of donations and was sent to Pakistan through the hawala i
systen—Thepoint-of-contact—inPakistan was—anifghan male, 5"3"-(game-
height as b with a curly beard and very slim. This Afghani would
take a taxi from Pakistan to Jalalabad either once a month or once every
two months. On one occasion AL SABRI obsgerved the Afghani with,
approximately 9000 riyals ($2,400 USD). MM would collect the money,
and usually on a Friday towards the end of the month, he would go to
the 8ifat Allah Mosque and distribute the money for the students who
were studying the Koran. -The money usually went to the parents of the
students and was a reward for doing well.

ﬂoke of Al Qaeda but only that they were very active
in Qandahar. vocalized digagreement with Al Qaeda's inveolvement
with suicide bombings.

During his 12 months, he was introduced to-
whom AL SABRI described ag a weapons dealer. He also met who
wag in the company of | . T tc1d A1, SABRI that

collected funds for the Jihad in Chechnya.

. Although AL SABRI heard about the attack on the USS Cole,
it was not until two months after the attack (10/2000) that |G
came to Jalalabad to buy weapons. While there he told AL SABRI that
his former roommate, “, had been the suicide bomber on the USS
Cole. At this time AL SABRI knew that he could never return to Yemen.

He knew that he would be implicated because he lived with the suicide
homber. He described his state of mind as being mentally exhausted
and stressed. During a separate interrogation, AL SABRI told a ’
different version to the story. || vwas in a market in Jalalabad
and ran into some Arabs who told him of the attack. ‘ friends,

and [ :c1d him of the news. When returned
home, he told AL SABRI. AL SABRI then told him the whole story about =
living with these guys and going to jail with them. AL SABRT was unable

to—explain~his reactionsemotions:

After gtaying in Jalalabad for 6 months, he decided to return
to NN = 2rab house in Kabul to try and get to the fighting at
the front line. On this second trip to Xabul, he observed the man in
photograph (known to interrogators as | HIIINEGEGGEGEE) =t -
-guesthouse. would come into the house and greet people
then go upstairs to the private offices. This person never was
introduced to AL SABRI, nor did he greet him when he came in.
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M was well know and would spend about %2 to one hour in
the private rroom. AL SABRI knew that this room was used as an

‘administrative office. -He often heard a television and a phone behind-

the door. It was mandatory to knock and walt before entering this room.

AL SABRI never went into the room because he kept his money with him.
He clarified that people usually went there to get money that

had stored for them. AL SABPRI stated that these people collected their

money because they were going to the f£ront line.

Also on this second trip to Kabul, AL SABRI saw
B -<- . «hon he had known from jail in Yemen.

told him that he was going to the front line. At this time in 05/2001,
finally authorized AL SABRI to go to the 2nd line of defense’

near Bagram. AL SABRI went there to support the Taliban who were
pogitioned to fight Masoocd's Northern Alliance troops. AL SABRI did
not recall seeing any Americans eilther at the Kabul guesthouse or at
the 2nd line of defense. He was shown a photograph of

but did not recognize having seen him. AL SABRI soon became bored since
. there was no fighting and decided to leave, returning to Kabul for 2-3
days. AL SABRI took a taxi back to 'z home and remained their
for another 8 months. '

In approximately 11/2001, AL SAEBRI left | s bone due
to Masood Northen aAlliance forces encroaching on Jalalabad:
arranged for an Afghani (nfi) to take -him to a small village where he

spent the entire month of Ramadan. Aftexr 25 days, the Afghani returned '

and told AL SABRI that the Northern Alliance had taken Jalalabad and

he had not been able to get in touch with . The Afghan guide -

and AL SABRI, along with two Saudl Arabs named

tried to escape the fighting through Pakistan. When they got to Peshawar
Pakistan, the Pakistani Army arrested them.
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Oon 07/18/2002, MASHOUR ABDULLAH MUQBIL AHMED AL-SABRI (ISN
003241} was contacted for interview at Guantanamo Bay h
2 , Cuba, by Special Agent (SA) Federal Bureau
of Investigation (FBI),
~addition, Speeialisgt  {SPC} | ~ 8. -Army Language -
Specialist, was present to conduct Arabic translation for the duration-

of the interview.

AL-SABRI described a varied and spotty work history for the
past six vears of his life. In approximately 1996, AL-SABRI attended
one month of night school before dropping out of high school. He hasg
not sought any othexr type of formal eduvation oxr vocaticnal training
gince then, AL-SABRI drove a taxi for three to four months (circa 1996)
then worked for the Ministry of the Hajj as a "doorman', guarding the
entrances and exits to the camps where the Halj participants stayed.

After the Hajj, AL-SABRI went back to driving taxis for the next year.
AL-SABRI drove a bus for approximately fourteen days in Mecca, Saudi
Arabia during the subsequent year's Hajj.

~ AL-SABRI advieed he was lopking for any kind of work but was

having difficulty finding work. At the time, AL-SABRI was 17 to 19

years old and did not want to leave Mecca because he was living with

his family who were taking care of him. He spent his free time playing

soccer, which is how he met hig friend AT,-SABRI advised he

has not seen M in four years (circa 1998), prior to being deported
AL-8ABRI went to Sana'a, Yemen after his

Erom Sauwdi Arabia.

deportation from
Saudi Arabia. He met two people, and _,
on the airplane going to Sana'a. AL-SABRI stayed with them for two

to three days. While in Sana'a, AL-SABRI visited for about two hours

with another friend, | o he met through .-
After leaving Sana'a, AL-SABRI went to Taiz, Yemen where he stayed
for about two weeks with his paternal uncle d

AL-SABRI then rented a house in Taiz with money he brought
with—him—Erom—SaudiArabia—He stated-that-he brought—$7, 000 Saudi
riyvalsg, which he claimed he had saved from his previous jobs., AL-SABRI
gold honey in Taiz to earn money. At this point, AL-SABRI stated he

was angry with himself for his situation and the fact he could not go
back to Saudi Arabia.

07/18/2002 | U.8. Naval Base, Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

/. | 07/18/2002
sa I
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AL-SABRI advised that a friend, NS,

recommnended that he go to Afghanistan since he could not return to Saudi

Arabia. According to AL-SARRI, MM fought in Afghanistan with the -
Taliban two years prior to meeting AL-SABRI. AL-SABRI andill wet prior

to his arrest by Yemeni authorities for his association to people
involved in a car theft ring., AL-SABRI had no contact wit while
he was in jail., After his release, AL-SABRI first went to gee his uncle
and then locked for|jlll. AL-SABRI locatedill by going back to pray
dﬁ"’a"s ‘& mormal.
religious man who was not well known in the community. AL-SABRI stated
that belonged to a religious group called Jama'at AL-Tabligh. Many
people in Yemen belonged to Jama'at Al-Tabligh. Mostly, they just went
out preaching. AL-SABRI claimed he never participated in preaching.
with Tabligh members and never saw any American Tabligh in Yemen.

Bl hclped AL-SABRI get to Afghanistan by providing him with
contacts, a plan, and a route. AL-SABRI flew from Sana'a, Yemen to
the United Aralk Emirates, to Bahrain, to Karachi, Pakistan. After
arriving in Karachi, AL-SABRI hailed a taxi and told the driver to take
him to the "Taliban House", which was a well known location. . AL-SABRI

" personally did not know the location; however, the driver knew where

the "Taliban House" was located and drove him straight there. AL~SABRI
degcribed the house as a big, one story place with four rooms on the
gide of the house where he stayed. It contained a mosgque, many bathrooms,
and waa occupled mostly by Afghanistanis with a few Arabs. AL-SABRI
provided two of the Arabs' names ac | (Yemeni) and N

(ILNU} .

. AL-SABRI rode in a car from Quetta, Pakistan to Kandahar,
Afghanistan with three Arabs: , (Lwvu) , and R
h In Kandahar they stopped at a guest house called Habi Habash
where they stayed for 14 to 15 days. AL-SABRI advised that the other
three wanted to be martyrs but did not say how they intended to accomplish
this. AL-SABRI claimed his reason for going to Afghanistan was simply
to check it out and possibly get married. AL-SABRI and his three

traveling companions parted company in Kandahar. AL-SABRT left Kandahar
for Kabul, with a Moroccan named , where they gtaved for two
days. Their final destination was Jalalabad where h
instructed AL-SABRI to contact IIINIIIIIII. :ccording to AL-SABRI,
and knew each other from Afghanistan when they both fought

—With the Talibar.

EL-SABRI claiied he did mot maintain contact with
while he (AL-SABRI} was in Afghanistan. AL-SABRI
stated he was not impregsed with Afghanistan at first because the streets
were "broken up'":; however, he contemplated settling in Jalalabad.
AL-SABRI stayed with for approximately one year.

When asked who could corroborate his story, AL-SABRI replied
and {both of whom are
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incarcerated in Yemen)} and | (= detainee at
2 contanano Bay, Cuba). Additionally, AL-SABRI stated that the

people with whom he lived and with whom he was arrested in Sana'a, Yemen
‘ghould-be able te corroborate his-gtory. AL-SABRI thought the Government
of Yemen would know where these people were located.
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sy MR- oooo2ll, was interviewed at
-GQuantanamo Bay, Cuba by- Special--Agents- |GGG -nd
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation. After being

advised of the nature of the interview, provided the following
information:

was shown a photo of ISN

. could not remembar tha
detainee's name, however he identified as being a student
at the basic training class at the Al Farouq training camp in Afghanistan.
a8 not gure of the exact time frame that he saw , 8ince
he has taken multiple training classes at Al Faroudq. believes
he saw in early 2001, around February or Marc

The e _were approximately 60 students going through basic
training when and i were together at the camp. There-
were roximately five to six c¢lasgses going through the camp at one
time, h hware in different classes. Of the 60 students,
about a half dozen or so spoke English, including [ IIIEEEEE. :ecause
r s‘pokeWhad the opportunity to speak with him.

7 escribed ag being soft spoken apd deliberate in his
peech He spoke rather slow. Based on the fact that_ and

were in gseparate classes, [ did not get the opportunity to interact
with * on a regular basis. ,

All students that take the; basic training class at Al Farouq

get: the same type of training, no matter what class they are in. The
training consists of the following:

(1) Two weeks of weapons training - students shoot
approximately 40 rounds, :

{2) Two weeks of basic commando c¢ourse
{3) Two weeks of topography.
(4} . Two weeks of explogives.

Following the basic¢ training, studenta go back to their safe
house in Kandahar where they are given the following choices:

(1) They can sign up for advanced training such as guerrilla

Warfdte,

conventional warfare, aind advanced explusiveg,
Investigationon  02/20/2003 ' at Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

This document contains neither recommendations nor conelusions of the FBI. 1t is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and ils
contents are not ta be distributed outside your agency.
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(2) They can go home,

(3) They can go to the front line and fight Jihad. The front
-linesg for non-A-fghans-vwere in two -areas, -one wasg the a:.rport -in Bagfam
and the other was in the north clese to Kunduz. These positions were
defensive positions that saw little action. According to | the
Taliban would attack and retreat often and because of the language
barrier between Afghans and Arabs, only Afghans were allowed to be on
the attack teams, Arabs and other foreilgners were only allowed to fight
at thé defensive "locations. Many Avaby did oot have “the pat‘ié‘r'ice to
do this and were upset about the lack of action.

The Al Farouq training camp was funded by Al Qaeda and
therefore was more advanced than other training campsg in Afghanistan,
The following countries and/or regions had training camps in Afghanistan;
Uzbekistan, Turkmenistan, Kashmir, Philippines, Indonesia, and
Bangladesh. - :

-saw Usama bin Laden approximately eight times. He
traveled with multiple bodyguards with a convoy of two to three vehicles.
The bodyguards blended in with the regular population and the only -
distinguishing feature was that they carried weapons.

If you were an Arab and you wanted to travel to Afghanistan
you would get in touch with another Arab who would direct you to a
training camp where you would take a baslc operations class, similar
to the one mentioned above. Following training you would get in touch
with your Arab contact and he would lead vou Wh Afghanigtan. Based
* mannerism and perscnality, doesn't believe that

is the type that would go to the front lines and fight:
According to it is prestigicus for a Muslim to be able to

participate in military training which will g:Lve him the opportunlty
to fulfill his religious obligation of Jihad.
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On May 31, 2003, MASHUR ABDULLAH MUQBIL AHMED AL-SABRRI,
-00324

Internment Serial Number {ISN) , was interviewed by FBI
e R ~¢ I,

U.S. Naval Base, Guantanamo Bay, Cuba. provided Arabic
translation. AL-3SABRI provided the following informatiomn:

_ 'AL-SABRI was unhappy regarding the length of time it hag takeén’
to process his case. He had no complaints regarding his health.

Regarding his passport, M (phonetic) was to bring
AL-SABRI's passport with him from Jalalabad. had asked
AT,-SABRT to leave Afghanistan with him. AL-SABRI was in a village
. outside of Jalalabad and the passport was in home. ﬁ

never showed up to leave with him, so AL-SAEBRT thinks he may have been
kllled

. ) AL-SABRI's kunia is ABU ABDULLAH. He used it in Afghanistan,
and even before he went to Afghanistan. He is not married and does

not have chlldren, but stated that he does not have to be to use this
kunia.

AL~-SABRT would like to get married when he leaves Guantanamo
Bay. He is willing to go back to Yemen, or go back. anywhere away from
here, '

: AL-SABRI stated that he did not know who the Northern Alliance
was, and did not care to know. He gwore that he did not know them and
- that he has heard of them since he has been in prison. AL-SABRI: was
asked who he went to fight in Afghanlstan he stated that he did not
fight anyone in Afghanistan. He went to Afghanistan to see what it
was all about. He had heard a lot about the'purely Islamic govermment
there,; and the dafety of Afghanistan. He found it to be that way when
he arrived. He described safety as being able to walk down the street
without anyone talking to you. He further stated that in Yemen a person
could be grabbed up when walking in the street, and arrested. If your
family did not have power or money in Yemen, and there was no money
to bail you out, you would be in prison forever. When asked if he
considered thig corruption, he-stated that every government has

corruption and there are good and bad governments everywhere.

AL-SABRI was shown a flyer photo of IIIININNNNNGEE, !ich
has been placed in a 1A envelope. He stated he did not recognize him.

Investigation on 5/31/2003 at Guantanawoc Bay, Cuba.

- e

This document confaing neither recommendations nor conclusions uf the FBL, Itis the prnperty of the FBY and-is loaned to your agency, itand is
conients are no fo be dlstrlbuled outside your agency.
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He asked about thig individual in relation to USAMA BIN LADEN, The
intexrviewers told him that he was BIN LADEN'g doctor. AL-SABRI commented,
who is BIN LADEN to now have his own personal doctor. It was furtherxr
explained to AL-SABRI by the interviewers that | w2y not be
-BIN LADEN'S personal doctor but he is a doctor and He also provn.des
counsel to -BIN- LADEN .- . S

AL-SABRI is currently housed in || . 2nd has not been

able to write a letter for the six months he has been housed there.
Six months ago he wrote one to be sent, but he has not received a reply
and does not khow if any letters have arrived for him., When he has .

T induired the gusrds have told him- that it ig up to the interrogators
as to whether he receives luxury items or not. He stated that other

than a few weeks ago when he was' shdwn some photographs, he has not

been talked to  for nine months, when some civilian and militar
d and

interviewers talked to him and had him moved from

then into isgolation. AL-SABRI requested that the J.ntervlewers check
on the status of hig mail.

AL-SABRI was also interested in knowing about I, saying
that the detainees talked together about what it might be like but he
had not gotten a chance to talk to anyone who had actually been in there,

The interviewers explained the benefits to the living conditions of
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' MASHUR ABDULLAH MUOBIL AHMED AL-SABRI, IsSN# o324,
was interviewed at U.8. Naval Base Guantanamo Bay, Cuba,
by Special Agent FBI, and Sa d Air

Force Qffice .of Special Invest:.gatlons Serw.ng as Arablc translator
--was—‘d -

as follows:

AL-SABRI stated he knows From
Yemen.  AL-SABRI was arrested with in Yemen fox alleged car theft.
AL,-SABRI stated that he first met at h's

sister's husband's house.  This is the house they were in when arrested.
They spent nine months together in prison. AL-SABRI stated he last
saw H in Yemen when they had lunch about 2 days after being released
from custody. They never went to trial and according to AL-SABRT, the
-were cleared of all charges AL-SABRI has seen ﬁ An d

AL-SABRI elaborated on the story about being arrested for
the caxr theft stating that two groups of three, one group of nine, and
one individual were arrested. AL-SABRI was in the group of nine as
well as » and others. Only three
of the total, one being from the group of nine actually committed the
car thefts. AL-SABRI speculated they were arrested at

brother-in- law's house because the persons involved in the car thefts
used to vigit this house a lot.

With regard to , AL-SABRI stated he had heard
from * that when left Yemen he went to the
front lines in Afghanistan with the Taliban and fought against Mascod

and the Northern Alliance. Interrogators in Kandahar told AL-SABRI
". that MADANI was dead.

AL-SABRI was shown the
detainees to inglude
AT.-SABRI identified

AL-SABRT stated that I nad also fought in Bosnia prior

to them meetlng AL-SABRI did not have any further information regardlng

-g—-Eighting—inBesnias

AL-8ABRI stated he was not aware of any tralnlng done by | IINGIN;
or whether he carried any weapons

07/02/2003 Guantanamo Bay, Cuba
| 07/02/2003
sz I -
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AL-SABRT was not aware if [ knew USAMA BIN LADEN {UBL),
but he statw-the interrogators in Kandahar told him that both

- I =nc NFT) were body guards for UBL. AL-SABRI did
‘not think that made sense as ﬂd not been in Afghanistan that

long. AL-SABRI did not know 1if ‘ wag a member of Al Qaeda.

AL-SABRT stated that while they were in jail together, |

_never spoke of any war stories or training he may have received.

AL-SABRI did not know if M had killed anyone while
fighting for the Taliban. '

With regard to the US8S Cole, AL-SABRI stated that he was not
involved in that attack ox any other terrorisgt attack. AL-SABRI stated
he did not know if had any involvement or not.

' AL~ SABRT stated he did know one of the USS Cole bombers, |

I . was another of the nine arrested for the car
thefts. AL-SABRI an were algo in prison together for-nine
monthg, AL-SABRI =stated that did not talk much and he was

shocked when he heard the news regarding 's involvement in
the USS Cole bombing. AL-SABRI stated he thought it was wrong for

was related to Al Qaeda or not.

gpoke briefly at _they

was in prison in Yemen fox

When AL-SABRI and
exchanged the news that
his involvement in the USS Cele bombing.

to bomb the USE Cole, AL-SARRT stated he did not know if




Case 1:06-cv-01767-UNA Document 178-1  Filed 07/29/09 Page 125 of 249

UNCLASSIFIED
FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

MASHUR ABDULLAH AL-SABRI,

Petitioner,
V. Civil Action No. 06-CV-1767 (RMU)
GEORGE WALKER BUSH et af.,

Respondents.

M Nt N M Na e e e e N

ISN [ CITF (Dec. 3,2002)

UNCLASSIFIED — Declassified by: FS

FOR PUBLIC RELEASE - . Date: 16 Dec 2008

L



Case 1:06-cv-01767-UNA Document 178-1 Filed 07/29/09 Page 126 of 249

UNCLASSIFIED
FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION TASK FORCE (CITF)
REPORT OF INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY

1, DATE OF INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY 2. PLAGE ' 3. ACTIVITY NUMBER
03 Dec 02 B Gu:ntanamo Bay, Cuba

4, REMARKS

Internment Serial Number (ISN

was interviewed an December 3, M U).S. Naval Station Guantanamo Bay, Cuba, Present during
the interview were Special Agent Naval Criminal Invesiigati c1s), sot. INGTNG_GN

Minneapolis Police Department {JTTF), and Contract ngutsti provided Arabic/English
translation. IIlllprovided the folowing information;

in previous inteNieWs-stated he worked fol at the Institute for Arabic
Studies in Kandahar, Afghanistan, -met USAMA BIWN on several occasions at the Institute and is familiar

with many Al Qaeda members who were in Afghanistan. entes being a member of Al Qaeda but said that
several people attempted to recryit him during his time in Afghanistan.

= initially shown the book entitled "September 11 - A Testimony” which depicted photographs of the
attacks on the World Trade Center and Pentagon. He stated thai the aftacks were wrong and not inkeeping with the
teachings of Islam. aid he hoped he was not being judged on the actions of BIN LADEN,

PAGE 1 OF § PAGES
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MASHHOOR ABDALLAH MOQPEL AL-SABRI (known associate of'emenl attack plans) -
saw him in the Al QGaeda guesthouse in Kandahar, He lived at the guesthouse, thinks he looks Yemeni.

He also prayed at the same mosque as Bl cretimes saw him at the BIN LADEN compound. He cannot

remember his name, but thought he was a simple person. [JJhas no knowledge of his affiliations.

PAGE 4 OF § PAGES
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.believed that Al Qaeda and AL WAFA did not get along and were enemi

es.
did not have any relations with AL WAFA that [JjjjJas aware of. isociate with
simple paople, only with high-ranking Taliban and Al Qaeda. The only time Al Qaeda would give meney to the

Institute would be during "the feast," The Insfitute would then distribute the money to the poor.

-conlinues lo be vary cooperative and stated he is willing to answer any questions in order to help the
investigation.
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Date/Place: 08 Jun 04/Bagram, Afghanistan

HOH ogyuno, I - i rviewed at the Bagram Personnel Contol
aciilly (BPCF), Bagram, Afghanistan (AF), The interview was conducted by Special Agent-Naval |

Criminal Investigative Service. The interview was conducted in the English language with Mr.
contract linguist, providing English to Pashtu translation. l

indicated that he was feeling well and had been treated well. He stated that he was happy that BPCF had
begun to broadcast via loudspeaker the Arabic call to prayer. tated that as long as he was able to pray at the

appropriate times, he was happy.

He indicated he saw in Kandahar in late 1999 or 2000. He also heard tha was

a guard in Tora Bora with Usama Bin Laden (UBL). _never saw-guarding UBL. I ndicated that he
was residing in Pakistan approximately 6 months prior to 11Sep01, 5o he only heard rumors about Il being a
UBL bodyguard. He believed the rumors to be reliable as was also on the Internet (NF1) and TV.

_did not know w @ of training -ad received in AF. He did not know why!vas in Kandahar,
owaver belisved that%een in AF prior to 1998. He did not know if-was in AF preparing for a
martyrdom missj gh opined that all mujahadeen were in AF preparing for martyrdom missions. He
was unaware of eceiving any boat training. [JJlldid not believe that it was possible to recieve any iraining
to operate a boat in AF as thers was no body of water to train on,

Reporting agent asked _\0 list all of his email accounts that he used while on the Internet. He indicated that he
usually used the Internet to read Islamic news (newspapers) or to check his email. He often used or
to search for news article in Arabic. He recalled having the following email accounts:

indicated that it had been a long time since he checked
his accounts and therefore could not recall exactly, however he indicated that he had provided this information to
Americans who interrogated him in Pakistan, and also provided a copy to his Jordanian interrogators.

Yemen.
.saw him in Kandahar in 2000, before the bombing of the Cole. He may have been in Kandahar as early
s not working on anything in Kandahar.

as late 1999. When met him in Kandahar it appeared tha
'employed” as an assistant in helping him obtain a
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indicated that he was uﬁaware of wher
visit to Malaysia or whorn they met with. He did not know if his brother and

attended to anything other than
obtaining a good prosthetic leg for Knallad. [ llndicated that he was about 50% certain thaﬁwas also a
guard for UBL. He was unable to account for why he thought that or how he became aware of that rumor.

new thafJwes captured while in me in Karachi, PK, circa February or March zooz.r_

tayed during their

ad been hiding in that safe house. He sa at that safe house priar to his || cact
alked wit briefly when he saw hirm, but did not know how ccupied his time while in that
safe house. He did not recall sesing a computer at the house or an internat connection. Further, he stated that he
did not recall seeing any telsphones, other than satellite/mobile telephones. Thers were 12 to 15 other Arabs in the
safe house w]thﬁ They mostly hid in the house as they could not speak Pashiu and knew they would be
arrested at checkpoints if they attempted to {eave the house. _ecalled there was a black British man
{FNU/LNU) who was also in the safe house with When asked if he knew | as a member of Al
Qaeda, hindicated that he was not sure. further stated that he worked for UBL, however he is not a
member of Al Qaeda. He then explained that one could work for UBL and not be a member of Al Qaeda.

-indicated that in order to be a member of Al Qaeda one must;
1) Swear bayat to UBL

2} Be paid by the organization
3) They cannot leave the organization unless they are on a mission.
If one swears bayat, it is a sin in their hearts to do anything that woutd harm the organization.

I - shown a photo of IMEEG032 4l whom he recognized as Mashoor aka Saiman. [JJwvas not sure
which name was his legal name and which was a kunya. He met him in Kandahar after the bombing of the USS
Cole. He may have also seen him in Kandahar in early 2001, aw him atotal of 2 to 5 times. Though he was
introduced to him, the two of them never really talked much. knew that Mashoor was new to AF at the time he

met him. Mashoor was residing in the Al Ansar guesthouse in Kandahar. This guesthouse was close to the Haji
Habash Mosque {near an old AF Army base), and was run by_and_. Mashoor only st

aved at
this guesthouse for a few days before he left (whereabouts unknown). Mashoor would come and go from lheh
N o sthouse and only stayed in Kandahar for a few days,
when he was in Kandahar or what he was doing when he left.
he was born in Saudi Arabia, either Mecca or Medina.

as not certain what Mashecor was doing
knew that Mashoor was from Yemen, howiver
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/=5 asked if he wanted any food or drinks during the next interview. He responded by staiing that as long as
he had the call to prayer he was happy. Once all of his interviews are complete [JJJwants time away to pray and
reflect. He does not care if he is held in Guantaramo Bay, Cuba, Afghanistan, orin the US. Based on information
that he has seen and heard, he would prefer to be in Guantanamo Bay, Cuba. -is not concerned with his
future fate, even if it means being sentenced to several hundred years in prison. He only wanis time to pray and read
religious books,
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CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION TASK FORCE (CITF)
REPORT OF INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY

1. DATE OF INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY 2. PLAGE . 3. ACTIVITY NUMBER

09 Nov 04 - GTMO, Cuba _
4, REMARKS

Date/Place; 09 Nov 04'TMO, Cube -

FOn 9 Nov 04, Naval
tation Guantanama Bay {3TMO), Cuba, by Special Agent (SA)
Criminal Investigative Task Force (CITF), Fort Belveir, VA 22080. provided Arabic/English language

translation.
as coeperative throughout interview. | I 2= offerad drink and tobaceo during the interview.
expressed he had no problems concerning his health, nor-any problems with the Military Police.

' explained he had requested to be transferred to [ llloecause he did not get aiong with the other
detainees. According t he other GTMO detainees though thatdwas a spy and constantly

badgered him about it. .

_was interviewed based on previous information provided by
wherei dvised ould provide information about

I /R which he identified as Mashaor Al Tazi, the Yemeni.
dvised that in April 01 and in May 01, before and after_attended the Al Faroug training

camp, he stayed in two guesthouses in Kandahar, AF, The names of the guesthouses were Hajji Habbash and
Alnabras guesthouses. In April 01 tayed at the Alnabras guesthouse for two days before he was sent
to the Al Farouq training camp. tended the training camp 21 days and after his graduation, he
-returned to the Ainabras guesthouse. saw Al SABR! in Alnabras and Hajji Habbash guesthouses, which
were owned by Usama Bin Laden (UBL). According to Alnabras guesthouse was for the new comers
where all new recruits reported, The Hajji Habbash guesthouse was for the ViPs. || ] ]l x0'sined Al SABRI

stayed at the Alnabras guesthouse and he was able to go to the Hajji Habbash guesthouse anytime without any
papsiwork or documentation. _believed Al SABRI worked at the Alnabras guesthouse where Al SABRI

faciitated the lodging and training of the new recruits and their travel to the front lines.

_described the Alnabras guesthouse as a three-story building with many rooms. elieved Al
SABRI stayed at the first floor because the other floors were colder than the bottom floor. id not see Af
SABRI's sleeping quarters.

_further explained he observed Al SABR| traveled, CM;Jmentation, betwean these two

guesthouses and the Kandahar airport frequently. Aceording t t SABRI used a blue in color, Honda
motorcycle for his travel between the airport and the guesthouses. helieved Al SABRI carried
messages between the guesthouses and the airport.

observed Al SABRI was well respected at the guesthouses.
id not observe Al SABRI carrying a weapon. Al SABRI was usually with a person named-
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. According to as a traublemaker, whom other

recruits avoided. A group of others usually hung around with Al SABRI.

Hbelieved Mashoor || A SABR was famous because he was there for a long time and

e was well known and respected.

explained Al SABRI and others worked for UBL. They did administrative and arganizational duties. Al

!!!!' an! others around him helped signing in the new recruits and facilitate their moves to the front lines.
also believed that Al SABRI facilitated the transfer of weapons and other supplies to frontlines.

explained at the time, Al SABRI wore a traditional Afghan uniform.

_stated Al BABRI was a member of Al-Qaeda because he was following UBL's orders to keep the
further explained that Al SABRI, because of his demeanor and his free

guesthouse up and running.

travel o and from both houses and the airport, appeared to be one of the hosses. Flso believed during
Ramadan, 01 (around Sep 01), Al SABR! transferred approximately $20,000.00 in U.S. currency to the airport, where
some of the training took place.

-did not physicaily ohserve Al SABRI swearin-to UBL; howaver, he believed Al SABRI must have
swear Ba'vat to UBL, because Al SABRI and the people around him knew UBL's travel dates and routes.

new UBL had visited these guesthouses oftan but he did not observe UBL visit whilg
stayed at the Alnabras guesthouse.,

eplied, "no" he did

ver saw Al SABRI at the Al Faroug training camp._
ibelieved Al SABRI had attended the training

not see Al SABRI a | 0 training camp because
camp prior to when id. believed Al SABRI gtiended the training in 95 somewhere in

Khowst, AF where the training was held during that ime. rther explained without training, people were

not allowed to go to the front lines.

I i cxolained there was another GTMO detainee, ﬂlmws‘?l SABRI from

Afghanistan. Aman was also an administrator in another guesthouse in Pakistan. tated that about a
' le] had asked if the Americans captured Al SABRI.

furiher explained another detainee, who worked for UBL knew Al SABRI.

N i cribed him as heing a skinny person with a long beard and mustache.

B e disclosed tha another friend of Al SABRI, was killed in Afghanistan and Khaled

-he right hand man of UBL, who knew Al SABRI, disappearsd after the bombing. as the head of
these guesthouses and he would giye permissions to the new recruits to go to the Hajji Habbash guesthouse.

iand A 8ABRI worked under [
—sold weapons at the guesthouse,
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ﬂeard thamas from Somalia and he was a Christian who converted to Islam later on.

I == e would be able to identify him if he saw a photo.

At the end of this interview-equested to see his regular interrogetor and stated he wanted 1o speak with

her.
A guery of the database revealed Fand _is
hstated that[IEEEE0032 4 traveled between the guesthouses and the

. Aient‘s Comment:

Kandahar airport frequently. The Kandahar airport is synonymous for the UBL compound; where UBL, his family,
close associates, and body guards lived. There was a guesthouse for single mujahideen at the compound, as well.
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY
1. DATE OF INVESTIGATIVE ACGTIVIT 2. PLACE 3, ACTIVITY NUMBER

10 Feb 05 GTMO, Cuba —

4. REMARKS

DatefPlace: 10 Feb 05/GTMO, Cuba

oD CITFE, Fort Belvoir, VA, 22080 interviewed

inguist _(aci]itated the Arabic-English translation of the
ho is also assigned to CITF, observed the interview,

Fﬁefore the interview, S asked how he was doing and—explained he was daing very well and
e did not have any complaints. as provided tobacco (dip), chocelate and nuts, which he accepted.
xplained that this agent wanted to clarify certain questions raised during the fast
regarding 1SN d)os:m- Mashoor AL SABRI (Ref: FM40 20041109 -

. tated that he remembered the last interview with this agent and it was about
Mashaor Al. SABRI siated that after the last interview, he started to think about AL SABRI and he
remembered something, which he had not toid to this agent during the last interview. stated he
remembered that in September 2001, AL SABRI came 1o Tora Bora with another GTMO detaires,
further explained that was the person who carried the large sum of money fo the
Kandahar airport with AL SABRI knew about they (AL SABRI and carried money because
whenﬁwas arrested by the Pakistani soldiers and was placed in a Pakistani Jail, he was in the same cell
with | Vhie they were talking, I < eale0 to him that land AL SABRI carried 10,000.00

U.S. currency and 20,000.00 Saudi Riyals from Hajji HABBASH guesthouse to Kandahar airport, then to a hospital in
Jalal Abad, AF. _fudher stated that according to the money had come from outside (NF1).

cuesTHOUSES AND Al sABRI'S DUTIES AT THE GUESTHOUSES: [ tec that

around May 2001, AL SABR! worked at the Hajji HABBASH and NIBRAS guesthouses. Hajji HABBASH was for new
comers and NIBRAS was for the people who have been in Afghanistan for a while, like impaortant people and such. AL
NIBRAS was located on the same street where the Islamic University was located. AL SABRI helped naw arrivals

(fighters) travel from Hajji MABBASH guesthouse to the airport or to Kabul. Thay were two of them who transported the
new comers. The driver was did not know how to spe!! || NG
AL SABRI assisted while he drove. Sometimes people {new soldiers) would wani to go to different places
like going In the fown for shopping or to the airpart to fly to what ever their destination was. AL SABR] and
would facilitate their travel, by helping them to find a cab or transporting them with the 12-person bus,
owned/drove. When new peaple came from the training camps, mainly Al Faroug, they would need groceries and other
necessities. AL SABRI would help them to get a taxicab, !f some one wanted to go somewhere, AL SABRI would
help that person to make reservations for a plane or a car. One timeigot some help himself from AL
SABR and One day, when wanted to go to the market, they, AL SABRI and I re'ped
him to find a car. stated that they found a cab and threa of them traveled in the same cab. After

got off the cab, AL SABR{ continued his travel to Hajii HABBASH guesthouse. If scme one wanted fo buy
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a weapon, AL SABRI would help them to find a weapon or the weapons dealer. AL SABRI had a friend who was a

weapons dealer. Most people would want to buy a personal weapon because it was cheap and the assigned weapons
had to be turned in if they were not fighting. ﬂfuﬂh&r stated that the manager of the HAJJI
HABBASH guesthouse received his orders through telephone. would then callhor
AL SABR! and pass on the order, was trying to explain how orders were received and haw they were
passed down). would also ask and AL SABRI to buy if the guesthouse needed items
andfor groceries. According to Al SABRI owned a Yaban (phonetic) brand, madel 70 motorcycle, AL
SABRI was able to go anywhere with that motorcycle, AL SABRI parked his motorcycle at AL NIBRAS guesthouse.
Others (new soldiers) had to have permission papers to travel. According to*if AL SABRI did not admit
knowing about AL NIBRAS guesthouse, it was because NIBRAS was a VIP house and AL SABRI did not want anyone
to assaclate him with AL NIBRAS. At the time when AL SABRI worked at the Hajji HABBASH guesthouse
as the commander of the guesthouse and
over urther explained that was also Known as
who never gets upset). | Nl vsec to work at Al Farouq and he come from Al Faroug camp to take charge at
the guesthouse. He was originally from Bahrain; there fore he was also known as*{unher
explained at the end of his second week of training at Al Farouq, he earned visitation rights and he was able o go out
for a visit. [ NNEEIl-=nt to Al NIBRAS guesthouse. In AL NIBRAS, saw AL SABRI. ﬂ
noticed AL SABRI was very busy with errands he was doing. AL SABRI was carrying messages and taking people to
places. culd not dare asking what those messages were or what AL SABRI was doing. AL SABRI was
well respected. now this because Al. SABRI was working at the guesthouses, he was an administrator,
he had his own room, he was able to travel without any travel documents and/or permission, he was there for a long
time and the guesthouse guards respected him. AL SABRI was not ane of the transit residences. | NGNGB0 statec
that AL SABRI did not wear special clothing ar anything significant, which would make him important or well respected.
There was no such thing, as one would wear a speacial type of clothing, which wouid represent importance. AL SABRI
was well known in these guesthouses.

WORA BORA I rc-ther expiained winen Usama Bin Laden came from Tora Bora to the Haji
guesthouse; AL SABRI also came back from Tora Bora. _further explained that while he was
at Tora Bora, around September 2001, he observed AL SABRI wearing the commonly issued military vest and with a
Kalashnikoff in his hand. _described the issued vest as green, Chinese or Russian made, containing four
magazine pockets and four hand grenade pockets. The vest was like an apron, which tied in the back with ties. AL
SABRI was wearing a Chinese made vest. AL SABRI, at the time was not carrying hand grenades. || N
not see AL SABRI firing his weapon and/or engaging the enemy with his Kalashnikoff {AK-47).

ONEY: When_ was iuestioned about his earlier statement wherein he stated that he

knew AL SABRI carried large sum of meney, stated that Around 1 October 01, a lot of people were
arrested while they were escaping fo Parachinar, Pakistan. Parachinar was the closest Pakistan border to Tora Bora
was arrestad and he was put in Pakistani Jail with
revealed to ' _and Al. SABRI carried the money from Kandahar to Jalat
Abad, Afghanistan to a hospital, did not know the name of that hospital. According to -they
- - A\ SABRI) were going to give the monay to Sheik (Usama Bin Laden) himself in Kuhat, Afghanistan,
but they were no omplete their mission because the war had staned.*urther explained that

I = =

AL sABRRI's OTHER ASSOCIATES: I her explained that three of the GTMO detainees

should know Al. SABRI very well,
-stated ad three brothers, ho was deceased, the cldest one was arrested in Yemen and

the other one whom did not have any further information. NN w25 adamant about there were four

brothers. -tso stated that |GGG > S2vdi national who Is in jail in-
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would have information about AL SABRI.

: _was also questioned

because of a request from another CITF agent assigned t

regarding his knowladge of
investigation. SA

_stated that he was a bone doctor, stydied in Peshawar, Pakistan, He sioke Enf]ish, Arabic and Urdu.

His name was He used to work in Al Wafa, which was owned by UBL. though first aid to soldiers
who returned from fighting, so they could help the wounded soldiers. In GTMO, was pretending to be crazy
but he was not crazy.

-explained if the case agent wanted to speak with him more or-he would answer his questions.
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REPORT OF INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITY

1. DATE OF INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVIT 2.PLACE 3, ACTIVITY NUMBER

15 Feb 05 GTMO, Cuba : I

4, REMARKS

Date/Place: 15 Feb 05/GTMO, Cuba

On 11 and 15 Feb 05, SA

DoD CITF, Fort Belvair, VA 22080, interviewed 1SN

Linguist [ faciitated the

English-Arabic transiation of both interviews,

B /ocnts Comment: SA [ is known as [N fom C\TF.

I O 15 Feb 05, stated that he will make an exception for this agent and he will answer all
guestions truthfuily. tated he knew Mashoor AL SABRI, ISN o2 - AL
SABRI from 98-99, Sa'na Yemen, They did not have a spedific relation. just knew him. AL SABRI was a
Yemeni who lived In Mecca. imet AL SABRI through other friends,

who lived in Saudi Arabia at the time, did not
know why AL SABRI came back to Yemen from SA, According to L SABRI's problems started when
he rented that house in Yemen from . it was a big house and many Yemenis rented that house,
explained AL SABR! rented that house because the Yemenis whom he met in SA, lived in that house
I th \andiord, was a mujahaddin in Bosnia and he was a well-known person,

] -further explained he knew the peaple in that house and none of them have any

connections with any group because he— knew all these guys and their convictions.

I 1< house (BAYT HABRA) was a place only for sleeing. There was no organization or any type of
organized activity in that house. Some of the people who lived in that house came from Bosnia and Afghanistan. Even
though some of the residents had plans against Yemen Government, AL SABR| was not assoclated with them, AL
SABRI was the new guy. further stated that he knew some of the residents of BAYT HABRA had secret
plans but no one else knew about those plans. stated that some of those guys rented three cars with
falsified SA passperts. Their intent was to sell those cars to make money. They also threatened the Yemeni Interior
Minister with death but even they did not like Al Qaeda. stated, " | know these guys, they did not like Al
Qaeda". These people did not agree with Usama Bin LADEN, They wanted to get rid of the Yemeni Government
because the Yemeni Government killed Abu Hassan AL MIKTAR, a famous mujahaddin,
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-stated that many Yemenis who came from SA, stayed in that hoyse and up until now, he
knew AL SABRI did not associate with any one or a group in that house. According to Yemen
Government captured two of the residents,

who had come from Bosnizn Jihad, After the arrest of
the Yemeni Governmant came back and arested all of the house residents because [}
had confessed to their plans. After arresting everyone, including AL SABRI, the Yemeni
Government conducted an investigation and found out AL SABRI was not involved with any criminality. So AL SABR!I
was released, The pecple who were involved with any criminality were given many years of jail time.

the suicide bomber of USS Cole attack) was one of the guys who were

found innocant by the Yemeni !overnment. -vas alse in Bogpia and Afghanistan but he did not have
connection with the car theft ring, or the house. He just lived there, i(new Hassan as

from Bosnia, He was the executer of the LSS Cole mission. AL SABRI's problem was started when as
involved with the USS Cole incident. Afte blew himself up, Americans told Yemeni Government that || N
was a part of a cell who lived in that house. Yemeni Investigators and American Investigators did not agree with each
other. U.S. Investigators though everyone in that house belonged to an Al Qaeda cell.

I < eni Government did not have a problem with Jinadists. if any one wanted to go Bosnia or
Afghanistan, it was all right by the Yemeni Government. It was not a crime to participate in a Jihad in another country.
After the USS Cole attack, the U.S. Government started to pressure the Yemeni Government and the Yemeni
Government started to arrest whoever came from Afghanistan. The Yemeni Government also focused on the car theft
ring, among them was also AL SABRI. Al SABRI| was certain the Yemeni Govarnment was going to arrest him =o the
only solution for him was to leave Yemen. Many people left Yemen for Afghanistan and this convinced the U.S.
Government that they were terrorists,

_-stated this was the true picture, which he knew. -saw AL SABRI's

photograph in FBI's wanled web site, when he [ JJJJEl v=s in Jordan, about 2003 and he was so surprised
because | imself was a much bigger player and his photagraph was not even posted in the FBI web site.
AL SABRI did not have anything to do with anything. istated that this is what he knew about AL SABRL. If
AL SABRI had involved with any wiong doing while he was in Afghanistan, would not know about i, The
last thing ¢ 2w sbout AL SABRI was that AL SABR! had jeft for Afghanistan in 2001 after the USS Cole
attack. According to| I this was the first time AL SABRI went to Afghanistan.

I GUcsTHOUSES: [ =ted that he knew about Hajji HABBASH and AL NIBRAS
guesthouses and he knew AL SABRI stayed at Hajji HABBASH guesthouse, All Arabs who stayed in Hajji HABBASH
were mainly Yemeni Arabs. Both houses were close to each other and they were in Kandahar City, AF. Hajji
HABBASH was close to the Hajji HABBASH mosque. [n fact, the whole neighborhood was called Hajji HABBASH,

AL NIBRAS was outside the neighborhood but it was still very close to the Hajji HABBASH guesthouse. AL NIBRAS
guesthouse was for new pecple who were being sent to the training camps. The particular thing about AL NIBRAS
guesthouse was that the AL NIBRAS management kept the house in tight control and they did not allow any media
news get in. They did not want the new comers to hear any bad news and about the war to prevent low moral. Hajji
HABBASH was for everyone, new, old, coming to or leaving Afghanistan, everyone stayed at the Hajji HABBASH
guesthouse. Especially, people leaving Afghanistan, passed through Hajji HABBASH guesthouse. | stated
that between late Februa? until April 2001, he was there and he saw AL SABRI. At the time, AL SABRI was new to

the area and helieved AL SABRI was not involved.

The general manager of both houses was
who oversaw At the time, as in charge of the

Hajli HABBASH and | v 25 in charge of AL NIBRAS guesthouses. After | oo«

PAGE 2 OF 3 PAGES

UNCLASSIFIED Declassified by: FS

FOR PUBLIC RELEASE ] Date: 16 Dec 2008

T il



Case 1:06-cv-01767-UNA Document 178-1 Filed 07/29/09 Page 146 of 249

UNCLASSIFIED
FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

4, REMARKS {Continued)

over the AL NIBRAS guesthouse. [ NEEEEEN v > i~ charge of Hajii HABBASH guesthouse before he was
transferrad to AL NIBRAS guesthouse.

- -stated that before the war, AL SABRI did not have any terrorist related associations.

related again that his knowledge about AL SABRI was up until the war, would not know if AL
SABRI| was engaged in any activity aﬂerhaw him last.

-tatad that AL SABRI did not have a car or a motorcycle while he lived in Yemen.

did not know if AL SABRI had a motorcycle or a car while in Afghanistan,
_- further state that whe ) was captured, he was involved
with Al Qaeda. Atthe time, lived in BAYT HABRA, Yemen. as also arrested in Yemen dut he
was releas

his release, went io Afghanistan and he was still involved with Al Qaeda. After the USS
Cole aftack, went back to Yemen around August 2001 and he was armrested in 2002,

R - < g ucstioned how many times AL SABRI was arrested in Yemen. ||| statec
that AL SABRI was arrested twice in Yemen. One was because of the car theft ring Incident and the second time was

for the USS Cole attack. This was because the Yemeni Government was focused an the people who lived in BAYT
HABRA.
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SUBJECT:

RECOMMENDED APPROACH FOR NEXT MEETIN
SUMMARY OF INFORMATION DM
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

MASHUR ABDULLAH AL-SABRI,

)
)
)
Petitioner, )
V. ) Civil Action No, 06-CV-1767 (RMU)
)
GEORGE WALKER BUSH et al., )
)
Respondents. )
)
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cite: B

SERIAL:

PASE; ]

counTrY: [l AFGHANISTAN (AF); PAKISTAN (EK).
IPSP;
SUBJ: A TALIBAN OFFICE
IN QUETTA, PAKISTAN, HELPING ARABS CROSS THE BORDER INTO AFGHANISTAN
BY PROVIDPING TRAVEL ARRANGEMENTS AND COORDINATIRG LODGING

waRNING: ([ THIS IS AN INFORMATION REPORT, NOT FINALLY EVALUATED
INTELLIGENCE. . REPORT [

ﬂ
source: N B v ::x OLD SRUDT ARABIA NATIONAL
WHO YSED THE TALIBAN OFFICE, KNOWNK AS DAFTARE TALIBAN, IN QUETTA,
PAKISTAN, TO ENTER AFGHANISTAN AND STAYED IN HOUSES RECOMMENDED BY
THE OFFICE TO TRAVEL EASILY WITHIN AFGHANISTAN. RELIABILITY HAS NOT
YET BEEN DETERMINED,

sumvary: ||| N 1 A TALIBAN OFFICE IN QUETTA,
PAKISTAN, HELPING ARABS CROSS THE BORDER INTO AFGHANISTAN BY
COORDINATING TRAVEL AND LODGING FOR A FEE. TALIBAN OFFICE ADVISES
BRABS TO STAY AT HOUSES 1N KABUL AND KANDAHAR, AFGHANISTAN, DURING
TRAVEL.

TEXT: 1, l TALIBAN OFFICE 1IN PK. THE TALIBAN GOFFICE CALLED
IS IN AN UNDETERMINED LOCATION OF QUETTA

/I, Y. (SOURCE COMMENT-~ 1 DO WOT REMEMBER
THE LOCATION OF THE OFFICE OR A DESCRIPTION BECAUSE I WAS WOT THERE
VERY LONG,) MOST TAXI DRIVERS ARE FAMILIAR WITH -LOCATION AND CAN
FIND IT EASILY IF ASKED. M SOMETIMES CHARGES A FEE, DEPENDING ON
TRAVEL PLANS, TO PROVIDE ARABS DIFFERENT MEANS TO CR0OSS THE BORDER
INTO AF AND LODGING WHILE TRAVELING, I CNCOURAGES ARABS TO TRAVEL
TO THE AF BORDER CHECKPOINT BY TAXI AND CHANGE TRANSPORTATION MERNS
TO UNKNOWN TYPES OF MOTORCYCLES PREVIOUSLY ARRANGED FOR TRAVELERS BY
Sl (FIELD COMMENT-- THERE IS A POSSIBILITY [} COORDINATED WITH
BORDER PATROCL GUARDS, SINCE BORDER GUARDS DID WOT REQUIRE SOURCE TO
PROVIDE IDENTIFICATION OR PLESSPORT.) {3CURCE COMMEWT-- I JUST
DROVE RIGHT PAST THE CHECHPOGTNT AND INTO AL.) - INFORME TRAVELERS
OF DIFFERENT LODGING OPTIONES IN AF CITIES ACCORDING TO TRAVEL PLANS.
OKE 0OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS HM CFFERS IS FOR TRAVELERS TO STAEY IN
ToF I sovse 1N karDadar /[ T
ANOTHER RECOMMEWNDATION IS p HOUSE IN KABUL
I - rvowr es trae [N
(SOUHCE COMMENT-— I WAS JUNFAMILTIAR WITHE THE ;
REMEMIEF WHERE THE HOUSES ARE LOCATED OR WHET

(ZARL N

3 ek
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iE’IELD COMMENT-- THE AL-QAIDA.TERRORIST ORGANIZATIOR USED THE [

HOUSE AND POSSIBLY USED "THE HOUSE.)
COMMENTS: (TIELD COMMENTS)-- 1. SOURCE WAS NOT FORTHCOMING
WITH INFORMATION AND REFUSED TO ADMIT HE KNEW ANYTHING AROUT
AL-0aIDA TERRORIST TNENGNGEGNEEE. SOURCE CLAIMED HE DID NOT
KNOW ABOUT THE ATTACK ON USS COLE UNTIL AFTER 12 OCTOBER 2000, WHEN
HE WAS IN AF. SOURCE BECAME INCREASINGLY AGITATED AND RESISTANT,
THE LONGER HE WAS INTERVIEWED, REQUEST EVALUATION,

DECLASSIFI . I:} ;i RELEASE BY JS 10 DECEMBER 2008
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-WARNING: {J) THIS IS AN INFORMATION REPORT, NOT FINALLY
EVALURTEDR
INTELLIGENCE

DoY: (7). 2QOIOQOO.

(I} A. A DETAINEE.

AR

BCURCE:

TEXT:

: ) A, A DETAINEE.
{(U) H. AN FBI AGENT.
OURIE OF PARAGRAPES 2-3G6 IS SOURCE A.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
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Petitioner,
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